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Board of Directors, Management & Committees

Board of Directors

Commodore G.R. Lavis

Vice Commodore M. Allen

Rear-Commodore A. Green, R.J. Hickman

Treasurer G. Swan

Directors M. Cranitch, L. Goodridge, G. Linacre, R. Skellet, J. Walton, C. Wise

Management

Chief Executive Officer M. Woolf

Assistant to Chief Executive Officer C. Del Conte

Accountant N. McKinnon

Sailing Manager J. Kirkjian

Operations Manager B. McMahon

Youth Sailing Academy Manager J. Bonnitcha

Communications Manager L. Ratcliff 

Senior Duty Manager M. GIibson

Sub-Committees

Archives: R.Skellet (Chairman), B.Brenac, T.Cable, A.Campbell, D.Colfelt, J.Keelty,

B.Psaltis, G.Swan, M.& J.York

Associate: J.York (President), A.Bird, P.Brinsmead, E.Carpenter, P.Emerson,

D.Hawley, J.H.Lawrence, G.Lewis-Bearman, I.McAuliffe, J.McCoy, C.Mulherin,

P.Neate, E.Ross, M.Wolfensberger, S.Walsh

Audit, Planning & Risk: M.Allen (Chairman), P.Billingham, M.Cranitch, 

M.James, G.Swan

CYCA Cruising: A.Green (Chairman) J.Keelty (Captain), P.Cox, D.Doyle, 

P.Emerson, M.Forstner, P.Goldstiver, V.Handel, D.Henry, J.Lawrence, 

M.Mills, J.Walton 

Disciplinary: M.Cranitch (Chairman), M.Allen, G.Lavis

Marina & Site: G.Linacre (Chairman), A.Copley, A.Offord, 

K.Stechmann, J.Walton. 

Member Services: M.Cranitch (Chairman), J.Keelty, J.Lawrence, L.Smith, 

G.Swan, C.Wise, J.York.

Sailing: R.Hickman, (Chairman), G.Bonus, A.Brown, R.Cawse, N.Crichton, D.Doyle,

L.Goodridge, J.Kirkjian, R.Perini, H.Piggott, G.Ross, P.Shipway.

Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race: G.Lavis (Chairman), M.Allen, 

R.Hickman, L.Goodridge. M.James

Training & Development: M.Allen (Chairman), J.Brooks, S.Jarvin, 

G.Linacre, D.Telford, J.Walton
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Membership No’s, Life Members, Past Commodores & Obituary

Year 31/03/06 31/03/05

Member 1,429 1,451

Country 211 211

Overseas 154 182

YSA Crew 86 95

Junior 37 32

Associate 302 275

Sailing Associate 29 33

Provisional 8 8

Life 11 10

Ex-Commodore 6 5

Family/Junior 77 79

Honorary 2 2

Sponsor 12 12 

15 Year Member 15 17 

15 Year Country 9 6

15 Year Associate 1 1

30 Year Member 122 116 

30 Year Country 31 36 

30 Year Overseas 10 12 

30 Year Associate 8 7

30 Year Sailing Associate 1 0

2,561 2,590

A.E. Walker 1944 - 1946

P.M. Luke 1947 - 1948

M.E. Davey 1949 - 1951

S. Berg 1952 - 1953

A.B. Wilson 1954 - 1956

M.E. Davey 1957 - 1958

D.M. Brown 1959 - 1960

R.C. Hobson 1961 - 1962

B.C. Psaltis 1963 - 1964

R.A. Cottee 1965 - 1966

N.B. Rydge 1967 - 1968

R. Crichton-Brown 1969 - 1970

B.C. Psaltis 1971 

J.J. Bleakley 1972

J.N. Brigland 1973 

J.P. Diamond 1974 - 1975

G.N. Evans 1976

J.P. Diamond 1977

A. Pearson 1978 - 1979

K.C.D. Roxburgh 1980 - 1981

G.S. Girdis 1982 - 1983

J.L. Brooks 1984 - 1985

A.E. Cooley 1986 - 1987

D.B. Kellett 1988 - 1989

L. McClean 1990 - 1991

L.P. Minehan 1992 - 1993

D.C. Fuller 1994 - 1995

P.H. Bush 1996 - 1997

H. Van Kretschmar 1998 - 1999

H. Sommer 2000 - 2001

J. Messenger 2002 – 2003

M.R. James 2004

Membership

Life Members

Past Commodores

Year Elected

P.M. Luke 1957

A.D. Campbell 1980

A.L. Brown 1992

R. Grubb 1997

D.A. Lawson 1997

J.F. Keelty 1998 

P.H. Bush 1999

B.C. Psaltis 1999

J. York 2002

P. Grounds 2004

A.L. Cable 2005

Obituary – Members who have sailed their last voyage

John Bennetto, Peter Dawkins, Effie Girdis, David Alfred Gough,

Charles Edmund Graham, Geoffrey Albert Hammond, 

Stephen Highfield, Norman Livermore, Michael Kenworthy Matthews, 

Gordon Reynolds, David Richard Turner.
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Commodore’s Report

It was indeed a great honour to be elected

to the position of Commodore of this great

Club in July last year. Whilst this came

about a little earlier than anticipated, I have

thoroughly enjoyed my first 12 months at

the helm of the CYCA.

There are many wonderful social aspects of

the Club’s activities, however the core activity

remains sailing, and so it has been over the

last year. Starting with a near record fleet in

the Sydney Gold Coast Race, onto the Rolex

Trophy series, the Big Boat Challenge, the 61st

Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race, the various

summer offshore series, including the Short

Haul series and cruising activities, the Mt Gay

Monday Twilights and the St Arnou Wednesday

Twilights and then into the BMW Sydney

Winter Series, which will be underway when

you read this report. 

Add to this mix the various other races that our

active racers participate in, including; races

organised by the Royal Sydney Yacht Squadron;

Middle Harbour Yacht Club; RANSA; Royal

Prince Edward Yacht Club; Sydney Amateur

Sailing Club; and other Sydney and interstate

yacht clubs. Other events include the Brisbane

Gladstone Race; Brisbane Mackay Race; Airlie

Beach Race Week; Hamilton Island Race

Week; Gosford Lord Howe and Pittwater Coffs

Harbour Races and the sailing calendar is

indeed a busy one! Not forgetting, of course

our very active Youth Sailing Academy which

continues to grow from strength to strength

under the enthusiastic guidance of Jenni

Bonnitcha. Our youth sailors have achieved

some outstanding successes during the year

and they continue to graduate onto members’

yachts providing a continuing source of well

trained skilful sailors.

You will note that I didn’t mention Sydney

Mooloolaba! As most are now aware, the

Sailing Committee proposed, and the Board

agreed, to a change in format this calendar

year, which involved moving the Sydney Gold

Coast Race to pre–Easter and the Sydney

Mooloolaba Race to the end of July. There

were a number of reasons for the switch

which was done with full consultation with

both the Southport Yacht Club and Mooloolaba

Yacht Club. The repositioning allowed the

Southport Yacht Club to re-invigorate an

offshore series at the end of the Gold Coast

Race, and allows us to initiate the Sydney

Mackay Yacht Race, in conjunction with, and

part of, the Sydney Mooloolaba Race in late

July. This 930 nautical mile race will now feed

into the popular Queensland regattas at Airlie

Beach and Hamilton Island and already a

number of skippers have indicated their

intention to contest this inaugural event.

One of the sailing highlights of the year for me

was welcoming home Club member Alex

Whitworth and his mate Peter Crozier following

their epic journey in Berrimilla, a Brolga 33. Alex

and Peter competed in the 60th Rolex Sydney

Hobart, then set sail double handed for England,

competed very successfully in the double

handed division of the Rolex Fastnet Race and

then set sail once again for Sydney, via Hobart,

to get back just in time to compete in the 61st

Rolex Sydney Hobart. I have the greatest

admiration and respect for the gritty determination

and seamanship of these two men.

For a more detailed description of our sailing

activities, please refer to Rear Commodore

Roger Hickman’s Sailing Committee Report

and Vice Commodore Matt Allen’s Training and

Development Committee Report.

The 61st Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race

The 61st Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race

attracted huge media interest partially

surrounding the anticipated match race

between the world’s newest and fastest 30

metre maxis. The prevailing conditions for the

race determined that it would be a big boat

race with the leaders virtually facing no

significant upwind work whilst the rest of the

fleet had to battle against the usual strong south

to south west winds. This resulted in Bob

Oatley’s Wild Oats XI achieving the ‘triple’ –

Line Honours; the Tattersall’s Cup for IRC overall

winner and the establishment of a new race

record for variable ballast boats. We had an

excellent fleet of 85 starters of which 80

finished and all but one arrived in Hobart. My

congratulations to all who competed and in

particular the divisional winners and place

getters. The race attracted an unprecedented

world wide audience on our excellent yacht

tracker system which this year was significantly

enhanced by the addition of Google Earth.

Another notable achievement in this race was

the record equalling performance of Phillips

Foote Witchdoctor. She equalled Peer Gynt’s

record of 25 Sydney Hobarts. Maybe she will

hold the record on her own after this year’s race.

Commodore Geoff Lavis  
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For many years the Tasmanian Government

has provided medallions for those who have

participated in 25 Sydney Hobarts, but last

year they also struck medallions to recognise

the achievement of competing in 40 Sydney

Hobarts. Those who had earlier achieved this

milestone received their medallions at the prize

giving on New Year’s Day and the recipients

were; John Bennetto (posthumously) 44; Lou

Abrahams 43; Tony Cable 42; Bernie Case 40

and Richard ‘Sightie’ Hammond 40 – the first

to sail in 40 Sydney Hobarts.

Solid support of our sponsors

We at the Club are extremely pleased to have

the continuing solid support of our sponsors.

Rolex, our major sponsor and the sponsor of

the Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race and

Rolex Trophy; BMW Sydney, our longest

standing sponsor, the BMW Sydney Winter

Series; St Arnou, the St Arnou Wednesday

Twilights and Maxxium, the Mt Gay Monday

Twilights and Mt Gay Top Jocks Regatta.

There is also considerable support given to the

Youth Sailing Academy, mostly by Club

members and via their respective companies.

Please refer to the Training & Development

Report for a full listing of these sponsors.  I

would also like to thank all the sponsors of the

Thursday night ‘Badge Draw’- this has

developed into a highly successful regular Club

function. Also, the generous continued support

given by many members through their

voluntary donations to the Australian Sports

Foundation with a direction of the funds to the

Youth Sailing Academy is most welcome and

gratefully received. To all our sponsors, on

behalf of the Board I offer my sincerest thanks.

Thank you to our many volunteers

Apart from the support of our sponsors, this

Club would be unable to function without the

continuing support of our many volunteers, be

they on regular Committees, the Breakfast

Club, Race Committees, Emergency

Management teams, start boats, assistance in

the Information Centre for the Rolex Sydney

Hobart Yacht Race and assistance finding new

crews – to all of you – thank you!

Under the guidance of our Chief Executive

Officer, Mark Woolf, and the enthusiastic and

loyal support of his excellent staff, the Club is

in a very sound financial position. Due to

sound budgetary management the Club has

again recorded a solid result with further

diminution of our long term debt, despite the

impost of substantially higher land and water

lease costs. Please refer to Treasurer Graham

Swan’s report and Vice Commodore Matt

Allen’s Audit Planning and Risk Committee

report for further details.

Club based activities well supported

The Club based activities continue to be well

supported by members giving a solid boost to

the financials mentioned above. Director

Michael Cranitch and his Member Services

Committee have been very active over the

year. At the direction of this Committee, minor

renovations to the ladies restrooms and the

restaurant have just been completed. This

Committee has also put forward a novel

approach to attract new members to this

magnificent Club, a promotion that will run

over the winter months culminating in a lucky

member winning a trip on the inaugural CYCA

Aegean Yacht Rally for 2007. The Cruising

Committee has also been extremely busy over

the year organising many in-house functions

and gatherings, not only for the benefit of the

cruising sailors but also all racing sailors in this

and other clubs. This group is ably led by

Cruising Captain John Keelty and his report of

their activities is an interesting read.

The Marina and Site Committee, led by

Director Garry Linacre is currently reviewing

optimum usage of the marina and is now

finally able to reassess the requirements and

best use of the old slipway area. I anticipate

that the Committee will have some

recommendations for the Board prior to the

Annual General Meeting.

The Archives Committee, led by Director Rod

Skellet have for many years been gathering

historical information on the Club and its

members. This work is getting closer to fruition

and in fact a great deal of the available

information is currently being uploaded to the

Club’s website. This has been a difficult and

arduous task and the Committee are to be

congratulated for their ongoing commitment.

The Associates Committee has again continued

their solid commitment of support for the Club,

this year once again under the skilled

leadership of Jeannette York. Her Committee’s

activities are detailed in her report.

To all the Committee Chairpersons and all the

Directors, thank you for your assistance and

support this year.

I commend to you this wonderful Club. Be

proud of your membership of this, the 

pre-eminent ocean racing club in Australia.

Geoff Lavis

Commodore
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Treasurer’s Report

Members will have noticed the dramatic effect of the introduction of Australian International Financial Reporting Standards on this year’s profit

after tax and the 2005 comparative figures where a $143,287 profit has been reversed to a loss of $26,402.

This is because under AIFRSs we are required to recognise the obligation to restore certain sites at the end of our land and waterways leases,

in effect make good the site. Under previous generally accepted accounting principles the cost of rectification was recognised as an expense

when incurred. The adjustments are of a non-cash basis and are more fully explained in the notes to the accounts.

Following is a summary of key financial information over the last three years:

Treasurer Graham Swan  

2006 2005 2004

Net Profit 344,176 (26,402) 22,425

Net Cash Inflow 120,815 231,047 (59,035)

Repayment of Borrowings (829,714) (808,257) (341,611)

Current Assets 878,602 879,259 744,699

Non-Current Assets 8,446,845 9,109,037 9,609,212

Current Liabilities 2,478,635 2,105,329 1,452,657

Non-Current Liabilities 3,474,945 4,855,276 5,951,380

Members’ Funds 3,371,867 3,027,691 2,949,874

Number of Members 2,561 2,590 2,573

Members’ funds have again increased even though membership

numbers have remained static as a result of strong patronage 

and participation in Club events which combined with careful

management has ensured gross margins were maintained and costs

contained. There was also a flow on effect with savings in interest

and finance charges as a result of the reduction in our borrowings 

in prior years.

This year’s profit result and the positive cash inflow enabled a further

part repayment of the floating rate notes and a reduction in total

liabilities from $6.9m to $5.9m. There was also an opportunity to

make a substantial donation to SOLAS.

The Club continued capital expenditure on areas of strategic value

and in particular acquired the MV Gordon Marshall. As well as the

make good provision our results continue to be affected by a large

amortisation and depreciation expense to reduce the carrying value

of non-current assets over their useful lives.

As in prior years our working capital ratio remains poor but

members will have noticed that we reduced our accounts payable

at year end by some $366,291 and subsequent to year end we

extended the marina hire purchase for another five years thereby

transferring the bulk of the interest bearing liability of $1,467,507 to

a non-current liability.

I would like to thank our accountant Nina McKinnon and her staff for

their assistance during the year and a special thank you to Christina

Del Conte and Mark Woolf for all the help they have provided during

the year.

In addition to the role of Treasurer I have enjoyed participating on the

Member Services Committee with Director Michael Cranitch, the

Archives Committee with Director Rod Skellet, the Audit Planning and

Risk Committee under the stewardship of Vice Commodore Matt

Allen, and cooking those sausages with the Breakfast Club!

Our Club’s financial strength depends on the continuing support of

our sponsors and usage of the facilities by members. I look forward

to seeing you on the water or in the Clubhouse.
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Audit, Planning & Risk Committee Report

The Cruising Yacht of Australia has an Audit, Planning and Risk

Committee. The Committee has during the last year focused on

the refinancing of various assets including the marinas and the

adoption of AIFRS to accounts.

The Committees responsibilities include:

• Reviewing the adequacy of existing external and internal audit

arrangements, the Company’s accounting policies and practices, the

financial statements and the Company’s internal control systems.

• Giving the Board additional assurance regarding the quality and

reliability of financial information prepared for use by the Board.

• Devising and implementing short term and long term financial plans.

• Reviewing rents and other periodic receivables of the Company.

• Reviewing and approving draft annual budgets prepared by the

management.

• Liaising with KPMG, the Company’s external auditors and reporting to

the Board on the auditors findings.

• Monitoring compliance with the Company’s and its subsidiary’s

statutory responsibilities including those under the Corporations Act,

the Registered Clubs Act and environment laws.

• Reviewing and renewing policy terms in relation to the Company’s

insurances.

• Reviewing policies and procedures in relation to the Company’s risk

management and making recommendations to the Board as to

appropriate risk management strategies.

• The monitoring of compliance with approved polices.

• Reviewing the Company’s compliance with taxation policies.

• Considering matters with relation to the Company’s information

technology requirements.

• An ongoing audit of the procedures employed by the Company in its

conduct of its major races.

• Dealing with litigation and other claims against the Company.

• Reviewing, negotiating and signing-off on all significant contractual

arrangements and other long term commitments entered into by the

Company, including agreements with sponsors.

• The oversight of the CYCA Safety of Life at Sea Trusts.

• Commissioning and obtaining revaluations of our assets.

• With the assistance of past Commodores Martin James and John

Messenger dealing with rental reviews with our landlords.

I would like to record my sincere thanks to past Audit, Planning and

Risk Committee Chairman Past Commodore Martin James for his

enormous assistance and long hours during the year. In addition to Past

Commodore James, the Committee has the benefit of having some very

capable people on which to draw upon, namely; Paul Billingham,

Director Michael Cranitch, and Treasurer Graham Swan. I thank them for

their efforts.

As you will note from the Treasurer’s Report and the Financial

Statements your Club is in a sound financial position. 

The adoption of AIFRS standards to our accounts has created extra

work during the year both for your Committee and management.

I would also like to thank both our Chief Executive Officer Mark Woolf,

and Accountant Nina McKinnon who have helped enormously in the

various responsibilities of the Committee.

Vice Commodore Matt Allen, Chairman 
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The 2005/2006 CYCA Sailing Season has

proven to be another excellent year of

sailing with some great results and in most

part good yacht numbers in our events. 

The CYCA Sailing Committee has however

been so consumed recently by the issue within

the Club of the handling of yachts with canting

keels and stored power that we have struggled

to stay focused on the hundreds of our

members who just love to going sailing. 

With the evolution of yachts and the related

construction and stability issues they require,

we have seen some great leaps forward in

recent years. The Sailing Committee believes

that this may now stabilise for a short time 

and it is time for the rule makers to catch up

and create a handicapping system that is as

stable as possible. The Rolex Sydney Hobart

Yacht Race constantly ensures that the CYCA

must be at the leading edge of knowledge in

all areas of offshore yachting to ensure that

this great event is run and managed at the

highest level. This has never been as noticeable

as this year with the larger yachts having

conditions that enabled them to strut their

stuff, so to speak, creating an area where

some sailors may have lost sight of the sheer

enjoyment of competing.

Offshore Sailing

Offshore Sailing is special as it is a sport where

everyone can go out and compete against the

elements and against other yachts. Enjoyment

comes from the “I did it” factor. This is why the

Cruising Yacht Club of Australia has been so

strong and why our races have been so

popular, because this is the heart of our sport

and it is the role of the CYCA to maintain this.

Let’s not let an obsession with winning dilute

what we have all worked so very hard to create.

Thank you to all the volunteers

The CYCA has so very many capable

volunteers who support the CYCA, along with

the staff of the Club, in providing our members

and hundreds of other sailors with a successful

and enjoyable year of boating. It is very hard

not to simply repeat what was said last year,

yet how do we continue to thank these

volunteers who are such an important part of

our Club.

Richard Grubb and his wonderful team on the

start boat have again provided us with great

on-water race management.  We at the CYCA

are, and must continue to be, eternally grateful

for the huge effort that Richard delivers to the

Club and while his team of dedicated

volunteers is a large group and too many to

mention, they know who they are and we

thank them over and over again. 

John Kirkjian as always has provided the

CYCA with a sound Protest Committee base.

The volunteers along with John who continue

to support the Club with their time and

knowledge in this sometime difficult area are

also to be thanked.

The 61st Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race

proved to be yet another good event and a

large number of people contributed to it. Tim

Cox and his team on the Race Committee

including friends from the Royal Yacht Club of

Tasmania are thanked by all who participate in

the race. John Brooks and the Emergency

Management Team also contributed to the

back up necessary to run this flagship event.

David Kellett with his trusted team of

volunteers again manned the Radio Relay Ship

for the 61st Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race.

This year John Winning supported the CYCA

by providing his exceptional power yacht JBW

as the Radio Relay Ship. John must be

thanked for his support and gratitude from all

of us has been passed onto John. 

The CYCA Sailing Committee itself is made up

of a group of volunteers that provide a wealth

of knowledge to ensure that CYCA racing and

sailing can be carried out at a high level of

awareness and enjoyment. Each member of

the Sailing Committee is a boat owner and a

member of the CYCA and thus endeavours to

provide every facet of CYCA sailing to be

successful. It has been a busy year and I

thank all those on the Sailing Committee for

their continued support.

Championship series

The premier pointscores of the CYCA are

undoubtedly the Blue Water Championship

and the Tasman Trophy. These championship

series embrace all our offshore events

including the races to Mooloolaba and Gold

Coast, the races around Cabbage Tree Island,

Flinders Islet and Bird Islet, and the Rolex

Sydney Hobart Yacht Race. The history of the

CYCA completely revolves around these

historical events as most have been a part of

that history ranging back some 60 years. The

collection of these offshore classics forms

Sailing Committee Report

Rear Commodore Roger Hickman, Chairman 



CRUISING YACHT CLUB OF AUSTRALIA Annual Report: year end 31 March 2006 9

arguably the toughest group of races

anywhere in the world. They epitomise the

values of seamanship, reliability and

persistence and provide Australian offshore

sailors with sailing challenges not collectively

provided elsewhere.

The CYCA Blue Water Championship for this

season was won by Prime Time owned and

campaigned by David Mason. David sailed 

his Beneteau 44.7 with his regular crew

consistently throughout the season to win this

much coveted trophy. 

The Tasman Trophy for Performance Handicap

racing, which also embraces those races in

the CYCA Blue Water series, was won by

Pretty Fly II. Colin and Gladys Woods sailed a

great season and while having a lot of fun won

a series that is potentially the hardest one to

win unless you sail very consistently

throughout the season, as Pretty Fly II did.

Other major sailing events

The other major sailing events have been the

CYCA Short Ocean Pointscore, Ocean

Pointscore, Mount Gay Monday Spinnaker

Twilight Series and the St Arnou Wednesday

Twilight Series, which were all well supported

amongst our members and other keen

yachtsmen. The CYCA Short Haul group has

continued to grow and have had some

exceptional racing, further plans to stimulate

this keen group are taking place for next

season. The BMW Sydney Winter Series

continues to have a record number of entries

and proves popular which would indicate that

the formula of pursuit-style racing is well-liked

and will continue unchanged. The Club is a

buzz every Sunday with the CYCA Breakfast

Club providing a breakfast and a fun style

atmosphere before racing, and a big thanks to

that group for their contribution to our sailing.

On behalf of all CYCA sailors, congratulations

should go to our Sailing Manager, Justine

Kirkjian, who has provided the Club with

another very successful year. Our racing has

been conducted without any major issues and

Justine and her team of Chris, Susan and

Roger have worked very hard this year to

ensure a difficult job is well done. Chris has

recently stepped up to the plate whilst Justine

is enjoying the arrival of her and Dave’s young

daughter Chloe.

Again this year, on behalf of all CYCA members

and Yachting Australia members, I would like

to thank one of our most valuable volunteers,

Mervyn Clarke, who gives up his time in

assisting boat owners and potential crew

members to come together for sailing. Mervyn

co-ordinates the list of crewing positions on

boats and the list of owners looking for

potential crew members and can be found in

the Sydney Hobart Bar on most race days.

Sailing – our core business

The issues never seem to disappear and the

responsibility to all sailors that the CYCA

Sailing Committee has must surely ensure that

this Committee must remain buoyant and

capable of guiding the tough decisions toward

the CYCA Board to consider. Sailing is the

Cruising Yacht Club of Australia‘s core

business and it is for this reason that the Club

has flourished and is allowed to enjoy the

beautiful location that we do. Our relationship

as a member Club of Yachting New South

Wales which in turn relates us to our national

body Yachting Australia, ensure the privileges

of being by the water and participating in the

water activities that we so much enjoy can

continue. Let us all get together this up

coming year to ensure that sailing and the

related issues continue to augment this great

sport of ours, sailing.
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The Training and Development Committee’s

main function is to oversee the CYCA

Youth Sailing Academy (YSA). The long

term development of our youth is vital to

both the health of our sport and the future

of our Club. It has been flattering to see

other prominent yacht clubs in Australia

model their Youth programmes on our own.

2005-2006 was an extremely busy and

successful year for the YSA. During the year

we employed Suzzi Ghent as full time assistant

coach. The combination of Suzzi with the

support of Robert Bell and various Advanced

Squad members has extended the YSA’s

capacity to run sail training programmes.

During the year part-time coaches such as

Dayne Sharp, have extended the skills of our

top YSA sailors.

Youth Sailing ISAF World Championships

A highlight of the year was Evan Walker and

Kyle Langford winning the Gold Medal at the

Volvo Youth Sailing ISAF World Championships

in Korea. Both nominated the CYCA as their

home Club and it is pleasing to see so many

of our young sailors elect to represent our

Club at national and world championship level. 

The continued increase in the number of YSA

sailors taking positions on keel boats during

many of our Club races, both inshore and

offshore, has been most pleasing to witness.

This continued association between YSA sailors

and the Club is evolving strongly and I am

confident this will strengthen over the long term.

The programs that the YSA ran in 

2005-06 were: 

• School holiday courses in January, April,

July, September and December

• University courses targeting youths attending

local universities

• Womens’ Friday evening course

• Adult courses

• Match Racing Umpiring Training Courses

• Dinghy Club linking programme

• School group courses

• General member seminars

• Freedman Foundation Disadvantaged

Schools Programme

• Eden Marine High School sailing camp

From winter 2006 we have elected to increase

the number of Youth Squads to three, due to

increasing demand. These squads are:

• Talented Sailors Squad

• Development Match Racing Squad

• Advanced Squad

These squads now include nearly 100 

young sailors.

Regattas run by the YSA during the 

year included:

• Line 7 Women’s Australian Match 

Racing Championship

• Navionics Advanced Squad Regatta

• All Marine Advanced Squad Regatta

• Intermediate Interclub Challenge Regatta

• Club Marine NSW Youth Match Racing

Championship

• Bavaria International Youth Match 

Racing Regatta

• Marinassess Women’s Match Racing Regatta

• Harken International Women’s Match 

Racing Regatta

• Mt Gay Rum Top Jocks Regatta

• Defence Forces Regatta

• Sailors with Disabilities Regattas

• ASCC Regatta

Training & Development Committee Report

Vice Commodore Matt Allen, Chairman 
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Youth Sailors represent our Club

Many of our Youth Sailors were chosen to

represent our Club at a number of regattas

throughout Australia and overseas, 

these included:

• Cento Cup in Sicily

• Governors Cup Newport Beach, USA

• Internationalaux De France

• Skandia Cowes Youth week under 25 Match

Racing Regatta in the UK

• Warrren Jones Regatta in Perth

• Hardy Cup run by RSYS

• Harken International Youth Regatta 

at RPAYC

• Womens NSW Match Racing

Championships at RPAYC

• Centreport International Youth Match Racing

Championship at RPNYC

• Youth International Match Racing

Championship at RNZYS

• Beneteau Australian Youth Match Racing

Championship at SYC

• Rutgerson Australian Match Racing

Championship at RPAYC

In the interests of promoting strength and depth

in sailing at our Club, the policy of the Training

and Development Committee is to provide

regatta opportunities to a wide range of sailors.

Whilst our best youth sailors now receive

invitations to Open Grade 1 events overseas,

many of our youth are selected to represent

our Club at various regattas throughout the

year. This policy has created a tremendous

depth in our sailors and has also met with very

strong results on the water. 

Sponsorship and support vital

As our commitment to Youth continues to

increase the need for support both in terms of

volunteers and sponsorship is vital. There are

many to thank, namely:

• Medina Serviced Apartments & Vibe Hotels

• Neville Crichton & Kia Motors

• Rose Bay Marina

• Musto/Line 7

• Talent2

• Club Marine

• Bavaria Yachts

• Toll Holdings

• Triple M

• Camp Eden

• Sailors with Disabilities/Lansa

• Sandy Bay Surf Company

• Noakes Boat and Shipyard

• Andrew Short Marine

• Harken

• Hood Sails

I would also like to record our thanks to the

following Mt Gay Rum, International Paints,

Navionics, All Marine and Marinassess for their

support during the year.

Thank you to volunteers and parents

A number of volunteers have helped run our

various programmes this year. Their long term

assistance is invaluable. At the risk of missing

many I would like to record my thanks to the

following; Doug Talty, Deb Wilson, Phil Mostyn,

Andrew Baglin, Gary Manual, Rob Weir and 

Bill Pringle. 

In many cases the parents of the sailors also

contributed to the running of regattas, and I

would like to thank them and encourage them

to continue their support. 

The staff of the YSA have done a great job at

maintaining our Elliott 6’s and I applaud Suzzi

Gent and James Francis for all their efforts.

The yachts are now in their fourth year and 

still look almost brand new.

I would also like to record my thanks for the

Committee of Director Garry Linacre, Director

John Walton, Steve Jarvin, Don Telford and

John Brooks for their valued assistance and

support during the year.

I would like to thank each member of the Club

who has supported the YSA through donations

via the Australian Sports Foundation. These

donations underpin our efforts each year.

In conclusion, I would like to thank Jenni

Bonnitcha for her enduring commitment and

energy during this year. We should all be

proud of what the YSA has achieved in its 12

short years.
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Cruising Committee Report

CYCA Cruising has again been very active

this year and provided a great variety of

information and entertainment for CYCA

members and their friends. 

One of our first events was an evening on

Antarctica. Adventurers Peter Bland, the first

man to visit both the North and South Poles,

and Jay Watson described their experience

trekking across Antarctica. George Snow

shared his experience of cruising the Beagle

Passage in Patagonia then Dick Smidlin

expanded everyone’s knowledge on Antarctic

penguins. These nights always feature a treat

and on this occasion it was Pemmican, dried

food that the early explorers survived on.

Cruising the canals

Dr Dick Smidlin (bargee) featured again and

explained the joys of barging on the canals of

Europe. Christine Sclink, from Mary Rossi

Travel, joined him and explored other options

for enjoying cruising the canals.

Beyond First Aid

We also held another ‘Beyond First Aid’

Information evening. As always this was a very

popular evening for those racing and cruising,

providing more than basic first aid for those

who go to sea. This event featured Dr Bob

Wright, Dr Virginia Handel, Dr Stephen Quain,

Margaret Keelty RN, Paul Featherstone and

Cameron Egar who each spoke on their

particular area of medical expertise.

I am very pleased to report that our project

Medical Management for Mariners (MMM),

which will provide medical advice for

yachtsmen far beyond first aid, is now nearing

completion thanks to funding by the SOLAS

Trust. We are planning to hold another

‘Beyond First Aid’ evening at the Club before

Christmas at which the content of this much-

needed course will be demonstrated. My

thanks to Professor Don Harrison and Dr Bob

Wright from St Vincent’s Hospital, paramedics

Paul Featherstone and Cameron Egar and

Committee member Dr Virginia Handel for

devoting so much of their precious time to this

project.  Special thanks also to the Directors of

the SOLAS Trusts for backing this project.

In October the CYCA hosted the annual

Yachting NSW Combined Club’s Cruising

event. Peter Cox, Pat Goldstiver and Denis

Doyle teamed together with the assistance of

the Commodore and Club staff to make this a

most enjoyable day and a great opportunity to

socialise with cruising sailors from other Clubs.  

Events on and around the water

There were also several events on and around

the water. A Flare Day was organised which

provided theory followed by practical

experience firing flares in the wet, windy

conditions that one might expect when letting

off a flare in a real life distress situation.  

The 2005 Cruising Christmas picnic was 

held again at picturesque Clifton Gardens.

Cruising would not be complete without raft-

ups and these were held at the Club’s 

mooring in Refuge Bay and in Sugarloaf Bay,

Middle Harbour. The Committee is currently

investigating applying for more moorings for

the use of Club members.

Committee members Denis Doyle and David

Henry organised a very informative and helpful

IT night which included demonstrations and

presentations on electronics such as laptops,

satellite phones and weather forecasting using

the latest technology.

In March we had a wonderful presentation

from Alex Whitworth and Peter Crozier who

recounted their adventures sailing their little

10m Peter Joubert designed Brolga from

Hobart, around the Horn to contest the

Fastnet race, arriving back just in time to

compete in the 2005 Rolex Sydney Hobart

Yacht Race.

A fun and very satisfying night was enjoyed by

all who attended the Fish Market’s Sydney

Seafood School. This evening was organised

by Marco Forstner. It was great success and

one we will be repeating.

I would like to thank all have who worked on

and assisted the CYCA’s Cruising Committee

this year; Rear Commodore Alan Green,

Director John Walton, Peter Cox, Denis Doyle,

Pam Emerson, Marco Forstner, Pat Goldstiver,

Dr Virginia Handel, David Henry, Jeremy

Lawrance, Michael Mills, and the CYCA staff,

in particular Mark Woolf and Senior Duty

Manager Marina Gibson and all of the many

staff and members who help make cruising at

the CYCA such a great success. 

Captain John Keelty
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Once again it has been a very busy and

productive year for the Marina and Site

staff. Andy Payne the Operations Manager

led the marina and maintenance team

very effectively. We can be proud of the

way our staff have served the members

during this past year.

It was with regret we accepted the resignation

of Andy Payne in April 2006. We wish Andy

well in his new pursuits. Andy achieved a lot in

his three years with the Club. We have been

lucky to promptly find a well qualified and most

suitable replacement for Andy. Brian McMahon

has settled in to his position already and

although it is early days it is evident that Brian

is well suited to the task of overseeing our

marina, site and various assets.

The sailing programme was as usual very full

this year. All the major logistical tasks involving

repositioning hardstand occupants to make

way for the Rolex Sydney Hobart Media centre

and relocating marina occupants was handled

with utmost co-operation and a minimum of

fuss. This was also true for installation and

removal of the satellite transponders for all

three long offshore races.

Fine tuning of the marina and site maintenance

schedule continued. The Club now has various

maintenance contracts in place for major plant

and equipment items. Regular preventative

maintenance is carried out which is resulting in

a  positive effect on departmental costs.

The marina has also been attended to by

Bellingham Marine. Each year Bellingham

checks and tightens all fastenings to ensure

maximum performance and life from this

important asset. Underwater contractors also

attend to the pylons keeping them free of

excess growth. This is an ongoing

maintenance situation.

This year culminated our lengthy and

comprehensive search for a suitable mark

laying vessel. We now proudly boast

ownership of the MV Gordon Marshall. This

fine example of a Steber 36 in work boat

configuration is proving to be a great asset in

augmenting our race management tasks. The

boat has been equipped with specially made

ground tackle retrieving winch sourced from

Italy. So far the new systems employed are

working very effectively. The other boats in our

fleet continue to be maintained in top condition

and are also serving the Club well.

Clubhouse maintenance

The Clubhouse maintenance has continued

throughout the year. We have also completed

the soft refurbishment of the restaurant area.

These subtle changes have added to the

ambiance of the area and are a definite

improvement. We also carried out a refurbishment

of the tiled areas in both ladies bathrooms.

Unfortunately I am unable to report on the

progress of any works in the slipway area. 

The Marina and Site Committee through the

Board are reviewing options and I hope to 

be in a position to present a report in the

coming months.

The demand for marina berths is not subsiding

in the least. Although plans were put in place

to accommodate larger yachts and cater for

our growing fleet in both length and numbers,

we remain stretched. The Committee and staff

are monitoring the non-activity of yachts with

permanent berths on our marina. It is necessary

for the Club to give priority to boats that are

fully involved in our Club’s activities and racing.

The Committee is also looking at ways that we

can reconfigure the marina within our existing

lease area in order to cater for the shift to

larger craft. We will remain vigilant in this area.

The marina staff have managed to run the

marina very well in order to meet our budget

expectations this year. That situation has 

been achieved.

In extending a vote of thanks to our marina

staff I would also like to thank my fellow

Committee members; Director John Walton,

Andrew Copley, Karl Stechmann and 

Andy Offord.

Marina & Site Committee Report 

Director Garry Linacre, Chairman
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Member Services Committee Report

The Member Services Committee had a

relatively uneventful year in terms of the

demands upon its time. 

We are fortunate in having a Chief Executive

Officer in Mark Woolf who has extensive

experience in the hospitality industry, and as 

a consequence, the involvement of the

Member Services Committee in the day to day

running of the bars and restaurants has been

considerably reduced. This is as it should be.

There are, however, matters which are of note.

In particular, largely due to the efforts of Member

Services Committee member and Treasurer

Graham Swan, there has been a refurbishment

of the Blue Water Grille to make the interior far

more warm and attractive. A consultant was

engaged, and the Committee believes that the

outcome has been very pleasing.  

The Committee continues to liaise with L eat

Catering to ensure that the food is of an

acceptable standard and the service up to 

the mark. It has to be acknowledged that

there were significant difficulties experienced

by our caterer due to a turnover of

management staff, but this has now been

remedied and members are urged to patronise

their restaurant facilities as the standard is

undoubtedly first class, and with the

refurbishment of the Blue Water Grille, the

ambiance has been considerably enhanced. 

The Associates Committee continues to work

with the Club to provide a range of functions.

Their success is evident in such events as the

Melbourne Cup Luncheon, Trash and Treasure

day and the Children’s Christmas Party. Their

input into Member Services is very valued.

The Breakfast Club has continued its very

worthwhile efforts and the Committee thanks

Phil Grounds and his worthy volunteers who

sacrifice a large part the early morning on

Sunday morning to fulfil the culinary needs of

members before they embark upon the every

popular winter series. It should be noted that

the Breakfast Club also caters for the volunteers

on the Start Boat and performs a valuable

service in this regard. As a result of its activities,

the Breakfast Club provides discretionary spending

on behalf of the members which might not

otherwise be budgeted for. In particular, the

facilities in the Members Only areas of the Club

are continually reviewed in order to ensure that

they remain responsive to members’ needs.  

Club membership

The Committee has also worked very actively

in trying to promote the membership of the

Club and encourage new members to join in

order to ensure that the Club continually

renews itself. Director Chris Wise has been

very active in this regard, and has come up

with many valuable ideas for the Member

Services Committee which have in large

measure been put into play. In particular, the

Club is indebted to Marina Boating Holidays

for the magnificent prize provided for the

membership drive which is taking place during

the winter season and for their organising, on

behalf of the members, a members’ cruise

which has been enthusiastically received among

those who intend to avail themselves of it.  

The Badge Draw which has been a feature of

the Club on Thursday evenings continues to

be popular with the members, largely due to

the continuing and staunch support of our

sponsors. In particular, the Committee would

like to thank;

Gold Sponsors:

• Andrew Short Marine 

• Beneteau Vicsail  

• EastSail 

• Flagship Charters  

• Hood Sailmakers 

• Nanni Diesel 

• Noakes Boat & Shipyards 

• Pacific Sailing School 

• Premier Boat Trimming 

• Steve Jarvin Motors

• Southcorp 

• Web Central 

• www.getaway-sailing.com 

Silver Sponsors: 

• ensign Wines 

• Kookaburra Challenge 

• Warnes Trophies 

Bronze Sponsors: 

• Balmain Marina 

• David Bray Yachts

• Globalstar 

• ICOM Australia

• Leisure Boating Australia 

• Mariner Boating

• Vuarnet Sunglasses 

• Wotif.com 

The Committee has as part of its charter a

commitment to listening to and being

responsive to members’ concerns and any

ideas they may have in respect of the facilities

of the Club and the way in which the Club 

can better serve the members. Members are

encouraged to communicate with members 

of the Committee who are ever ready to hear

and respond to their concerns. The

membership of the Committee can be found

on the Club website and undoubtedly at least

one of them will be known to a member who

wishes to raise any matter of concern.

Finally, although not all are specifically mentioned

by name in this report, may I thank the very

dedicated members of the Committee who

have made working with them such a pleasure.

Director Michael Cranitch, Chairman
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Archives Committee Report

The past 12 months has seen some

significant milestones achieved by the

Archives Committee.

Bob Ross has provided an extremely

detailed and comprehensive manuscript,

125,000 plus words on the history of our

Club and the associated ocean races. This

manuscript is being analysed and the Board

will be making a decision on the final

publication of the book. In the meantime,

portions of the manuscript will be made

available on our website once the dedicated

archive section is developed.

With the book aside, the Committee has

made solid gains in the process of

preserving our valuable archives. The Board

approved the recommendation from our

Committee, for the purchase of computer

hardware and relevant software to enable us

to digitise and search through cross

referencing all our hard copy archives. The

Committee must thank member David Colfelt

for his enormous assistance in advising the

Club on both the hardware and software

suitable for this purpose.

I am pleased to report that since the

computer’s arrival in April, David has

successfully scanned the first 33 editions of

our Offshore Magazine. Eventually all CYCA

produced documents will be digitised and

made available on our archive site. Access

to the site will be for members only and

should provide enormous benefit and

satisfaction to those members 

who are interested in our Club’s history and

archival material.

Do you have an interest in archiving?

The task of digitising the Club history is 

very time consuming work, and it is in this

light that I appeal to any Club members 

with an interest in archiving who wish to

volunteer their time to make themselves

known to either myself or to a member of 

the Committee.

Club photos and stories

There is no doubt that many items, photos

and stories surrounding the Club are sitting

in the homes of our members gathering dust

and disappearing from the memories of our

members. If you hold a significant item and

wish to donate it or let us view it, then

please come forward and make yourselves

known. Archiving is a never ending task, and

the responsibility to preserve our Clubs

history falls on all our members, not just

those who are 30 year plus veterans. 

Finally I would like to thank my Committee

members for their contribution this year;

Director Graham Swan, Alan Campbell, John

Keelty, Bill Psaltis, David Colfelt, Bob

Brenac, Jeannette and Michael York and

Tony Cable, and look forward to 2007 when

our history should be finally published.

Director Rod Skellet, Chairman 
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As a founding member 43 years ago of the Associates Committee,

in September 1963, it gave me great pleasure to take the helm

yet again for a third term as President in 2005. This dedicated,

hard working Committee donate their time and skills to organising

diverse events and social functions for the benefit and enjoyment

of all Club members.

Parade of Sail

Our 12th ‘Parade of Sail & Blessing of the Fleet’ was held in July, on 

yet another spectacular winter’s day. The official start vessel was Garry

Rothwell’s magnificent 1939 Halvorsen motor cruiser Silver Cloud III, 

Life member Alan Brown fired the cannon, Rear Commodore Alan

Green, stood in for Commodore Geoff Lavis, taking the salute and

Chaplain Chris Aulich RAN of HMAS Waterhen blessed the fleet of

classic yachts as they sailed past. The judging has become more

difficult each year as the owners of these beautiful yachts vie for ‘The

Ship Shape & Bristol Fashion Award’. The winner yet again was Neville

Crichton’s magnificent Plym skippered by Don Telford, second John and

Margaret Keelty’s Electra and third Ian Kiernan’s Maris. The skippers,

crews and guests joined us for an enjoyable lunch and prizegiving in the

Morna and Freya Rooms.  

Melbourne Cup Luncheon

Our popular Champagne Luncheon saw a capacity sell out crowd in the

Freya and Morna Rooms. The day was brilliant, members and guests

were dressed for the occasion in the latest spring fashion. Great fun

was had by all as they participated in the sweeps, raffles, competitions

and fashion awards, finishing off with the big race on the big screen. For

such an action packed day thanks must go to the Committee

volunteers, the Club management and staff.

Club Christmas Decorations

At the request of the Member Services Committee, the Associates

Committee purchased Christmas decorations and over a two day

period, decorated the Clubhouse in festive manner, much admired by

members and guests. Thank you to, Eve Ross, Trish and Peter Cox,

Jeremy Lawrence and staff members for their time and effort in

achieving a great result.

Children’s Christmas Party

This annual Club event is a great family day, 60 members’ children and

their parents had a great time, with, professional clowns, face painting,

party food, balloons and marvellous individual presents given out by

Santa, who arrived by Club tender. Thanks to Eve Ross, Sharron Walsh,

Brian Emerson and our Committee members.

Christmas Hamper

The gourmet Christmas hamper is donated annually and assembled by

the Associates Committee who also generously give of their time selling

the raffle tickets. This year’s financial result was most pleasing, as this

is one way we can accrue revenue to purchase items for the Club and

the members.

Wednesday Twilight Raffles

Permission from the Board to sell raffle tickets during the St Arnou

Wednesday Twilight Series was granted. Members of the Committee

achieved a good result even though the weather was less than kind,

thank you to Sharron Walsh, Committee members and their friends for

selling tickets.

SOLAS Trusts Appeal

Thank you to Committee members and their friends who yet again

donated their time at the end of the BMW Sydney Winter Series to sell

raffle tickets and help the Club raise funds for the SOLAS Trusts.

Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Information Office

During the lead up to the 2005 Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race, 

thank you to members of our Committee who helped man the

Information Desk.

Donations  

Each year the Committee donate to nominated charities. In the past

year they were the Rural Fire Service and Care Flight Australia.

In closing my report I wish to extend my personal thanks to all my fellow

Committee members, for giving their time and effort over the past year.

Thanks to Shaaron Walsh, Cathy Mulherin, Pam Emerson, Eve Ross,

Aurian Bird, Pam Brinsmead, Elizabeth Carpenter, Diana Hawley, Irene

McAuliffe, Pam Neate, Jane McCoy, Marie Lou Wolfensberger, Joo-Hee

Lawrence and past President Gail Lewis- Bearman.

The Associates Committee would like to thank the Commodore, the

Board and the Chief Executive Officer and staff for their continued

assistance and co-operation through out the past year.

President Jeannette York 
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their report together with the financial report of the Cruising Yacht Club of Australia (‘the Company’) for the year ended 31

March 2006 and the auditor’s report thereon.

Directors

The directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are:

Name and qualifications Age Experience and special responsibilities

Mr Geoffrey R Lavis 59 Director since July 1999 

B.Comm (Acctng) Managing Director, Lavis Corp Pty Ltd 

Non-executive Director Chairman, Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Committee 

Commodore Member, Disciplinary Committee 

Owner – UBS Wild Thing Director Ocean Racing Club of Australia (ORCA)

Mr Matthew C Allen 43 Director since July 2002

B.Bus MAICD Former Regional Chief Executive Officer UBS (Japan)

Non-executive Director Executive Chairman Halcyon Pty Limited 

Vice Commodore Chairman, Training & Development Committee

Owner – Ichi Ban Chairman, Audit, Planning and Risk Committee 

Member, Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Committee

Member, Disciplinary Committee

Director Ocean Racing Club of Australia (ORCA)

Director of CYCA SOLAS Limited the trustee of CYCA

Mr Roger J Hickman 52 Director since June 1996

Master Class I Managing Director Approach Solutions Pty Ltd

Non-executive Director Former Merchant Navy Captain

Rear Commodore Senior Vice President Yachting NSW

Owner – Wild Oats CYCA Special Regulations Auditor

Chairman, Yachting NSW Special Regulations

NSW Representative – National Safety Council

Chairman, Sailing Committee

Member, YNSW Offshore Committee

Member, Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Committee

Director Ocean Racing Club of Australia (ORCA)

Mr Alan Green 59 Director since June 1996

B.Econ., M.Comm.(Econ) Managing Director, International Technology Group Pty Ltd

Non-executive Director Director, Trilateral Pty Ltd

Rear Commodore Director of CYCA SOLAS Limited the trustee of CYCA 

Owner – Tonic Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Safety of Life at Sea Trusts

Chairman, Cruising Committee

Member Yachting NSW Cruising Committee

Mr Graham R Swan 48 Director since July 2003

B.Econ. FCA, MAICD Executive Chairman Rothsay Consulting Services Pty Limited

Non-executive Director Director numerous proprietary companies

Treasurer Member, Audit, Planning & Risk Committee 

Member, Member Services Committee

Member, Archives Committee
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Name and qualifications Age Experience and special responsibilities

Mr Michael Cranitch 61 Director since July 2000

LLB, SC Senior Counsel NSW Bar

Non-executive Director Chairman, Member Services Committee

Owner – Broomstick Chairman, Disciplinary Committee

Member, Audit, Planning and Risk Committee

Mr Leslie W Goodridge 51 Director since July 2003

B Elec.Eng Commander RANR

Non-executive Director Managing Director Owen International Pty Limited

Owner – Erica J Member, Sailing Committee

Member, Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Committee

Mr Garry Linacre 53 Director from June 1986 to June 1988 and since July 2000

Non-executive Director General Manager, Navionics Australia

Owner – Flicka Chairman, Marina and Site Committee

Member, Training and Development Committee

Mr Rod Skellet 43 Director since July 1997

B.Sci (Agr), MSDIA Deutsche Bank AG – Aust & NZ Global Markets

Non-executive Director Chairman, Archives Committee

Owner – Club Marine

Mr John S Walton AM 67 Director since July 2004

MBA (Stanford), BEcon (Hons), FCPA, FAICD, FAIM Chairman, JS Walton Enterprises Ltd

Non-executive Director Deputy Chairman, Australian Institute of Management Ltd

Owner – Vivacite Director, Prince of Wales Medical Research Institute

Director various proprietary companies

Member, Marina and Site Committee

Member, Training and Development Committee

Member, Cruising Committee

Mr Chris Wise 53 Director since July 2005

Non-executive Director Director, Ben Lexcen Yacht Designs

Member, Member Services Committee

Mr Martin R James 49 Director July 1998 to July 2005

B.Juris (Hons), LLB (Hons) Partner, Mallesons Stephen Jacques

Non-executive Director Chairman, CYCA SOLAS Limited the trustee of CYCA Sydney

Owner – Infinity III Hobart Yacht Race Safety of Life at Sea Trusts

(Retired July 2005) Member, Audit, Planning and Risk Committee

Member, Rolex Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Committee

Directors’ Report Continued
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Directors’ Report Continued

Directors’ meetings

The number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) and number of meetings attended by each of the directors of the

Company during the financial year are:

Board Meetings Other Meetings

Director Attended Held* Attended Held*

G R Lavis 9 14 13 15

M C Allen 13 14 16 18

A Green 10 14 5 7

R J Hickman 9 14 7 13

G Swan 9 14 11 17

M Cranitch 10 14 10 11

L Goodridge 12 14 6 11

G Linacre 14 14 8 9

R Skellet 11 14 11 15

J S Walton 12 14 13 16

C Wise 7 9 8 8

M R James 5 5 10 10

*Number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the year.
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Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company during the course of the financial

year were to promote participation in yachting including the sport of

sailing and to provide ocean racing facilities, training and other yachting

facilities and competition for its members.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the activities of the

Company during the year.

Membership

The Club is a Company limited by guarantee and without share capital.

The number of members as at 31 March 2006 and the comparison with

last year is as follows:

2006 2005

Number of members 2,561 2,590

Review and results of operations

The result from ordinary activities before tax for the year amounted to a

net profit of $344,176 compared with a loss of $26,402 for the prior

year, after adjustments have been made for AIFRS.  This resulted after

charging $846,091 (2005: $805,693) for depreciation and amortisation.

Dividends

The Company is a non-profit organisation and is prevented by its

constitution from paying dividends.

State of affairs

In the opinion of the directors there were no significant changes in the

state of affairs of the Company that occurred during the financial year

under review.

Environmental regulation

The Company’s operations are subject to various environmental

regulations under both Commonwealth and State legislation.

The Board believes that the Company has adequate systems in place

for the management of its environmental requirements and is not aware

of any breach of those environmental requirements as they apply to 

the Company.

Likely developments

The directors do not anticipate any further development in the

operations of the Club which will affect the results in subsequent years.

Events subsequent to reporting date

Hire purchase

The hire purchase for the marina was renegotiated subsequent to year

end and extended for a further 5 years. Accordingly, the obligation

recognised as a current interest bearing liability in the balance sheet in

the amount of $1,467,507 will not be required to be settled in full within

12 months of balance date, and it would now be shown as a non-

current liability.

Indemnification and insurance of officers

The Company has provided for and paid premiums to the value of

$6,077 during the year for directors’ and officers’ liability insurance. The

insurance is in respect of legal liability for damages and legal costs to a

maximum of $10,000,000 arising from claims made by reason of any

omissions or acts (other than dishonesty) by them, whilst acting in their

individual or collective capacity as directors or officers of the Company. 

The insurance premiums relate to:

• costs and expenses incurred by the relevant officers in defending

proceedings, whether civil or criminal and whatever their 

outcome; and

• other liabilities that may arise from their position, with the exception 

of conduct involving a wilful breach of duty or improper use of

information or position to gain a personal advantage.

Dated at Sydney this 25th day of May 2006.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

G R Lavis G Swan

Commodore Treasurer

Directors’ Report Continued
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To: the directors of the Cruising Yacht Club of Australia 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial year ended 31 March 2006 there have been:

• no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

• no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

KPMG 

Cameron Roan

Partner

Sydney

25th May 2006

Auditor’s Independence Declaration 

under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001
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Note 2006 2005
$ $ 

Revenue from sale of goods 3,397,280 3,273,071

Revenue from rendering of services 4,642,184 5,083,940

Total revenue 8,039,464 8,357,011

Cost of goods sold 1,515,418 1,621,488

Employee and employment expenses 2,245,691 2,133,705

Entertainment and members costs 203,915 231,759

Sailing event costs  425,500 577,756

Property expenses 1,037,476 1,291,659

Insurance 151,134 181,011

Repairs and maintenance 239,642 292,656

Temporary services 227,025 210,729

Other operating expenses 476,435 641,247

Earnings before depreciation, amortisation, and financing costs 1,517,228 1,175,001

Financing income 28,260 14,514

Financing expenses (355,221) (410,225)

Net financing costs (326,961) (395,711)

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 846,091 805,692

Profit before tax 344,176 (26,402)

Income tax expense - -

Profit after tax 15 344,176 (26,402)

Note 2006 2005

$ $ 

Net income recognised directly in equity - -

Profit for the period 344,176 (26,402)

Total recognised income and expense for the period 15 344,176 (26,402)

Retained earnings at 1 April 15 3,027,691 3,054,093

Retained earnings at 31 March 15 3,371,867 3,027,691

Income Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2006

For the year ended 31 March 2006

The income statement of financial performance is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 25 to 40.

The statement of recognised income and expenses is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 25 to 40.

Statement of Recognised Income & Expenses
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Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2006

Current assets Note 2006 2005
$ $

Cash assets 5 409,341 288,526

Receivables 6 364,727 318,244

Inventories 7 104,534 116,600

Prepayments 8 - 155,889

Total current assets 878,602 879,259

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 9 8,446,845 9,109,037

Total non-current assets 8,446,845 9,109,037

Total assets 9,325,447 9,988,296

Current liabilities

Payables 10 732,854 1,099,145

Interest-bearing liabilities 11 1,467,507 752,380

Employee entitlements 12 167,414 148,290

Income received in advance 110,860 105,514

Total current liabilities 2,478,635 2,105,329

Non-current liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 11 651,095 2,193,603

Employee entitlements 12 140,565 110,683

Provisions 13 2,430,020 2,305,522

Deposits 14 253,265 245,468

Total non-current liabilities 3,474,945 4,855,276

Total liabilities 5,953,580 6,960,605

Net assets 3,371,867 3,027,691

Members’ funds

Retained profits 15 3,371,867 3,027,691

Total members’ funds 3,371,867 3,027,691

The balance sheet is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 25 to 40.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2006

Cash flows from operating activities Note 2006 2005
$ $  

Cash receipts in the course of operations 8,814,211 9,264,812

Cash payments in the course of operations (7,476,171) (7,772,747)

Interest received 28,260 14,514

Borrowing costs paid (230,723) (292,105)

Net cash from operating activities 18 1,135,577 1,214,474

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds on disposal of non-current assets - -

Payments for property, plant and equipment (185,048) (175,170)

Net cash used in investing activities (185,048) (175,170)

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings (829,714) (808,257)

Net cash used in financing activities (829,714) (808,257)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held 120,815 231,047

Cash at beginning of the financial year 288,526 57,479

Cash at end of the financial year 5 409,341 288,526

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 25 to 40.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2006

Significant accounting policies

Cruising Yacht Club of Australia (“the Company”) is a company domiciled 

in Australia. 

The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on 

25 May 2006.

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been

prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (“AASBs”),

Urgent Issues Group Interpretations (“UIGs”) adopted by the Australian

Accounting Standards Board (“AASB”), the Corporations Act 2001, the

Registered Clubs Act and Gaming Machines Tax Act 2001.  International

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) form the basis of Australian

Accounting Standards adopted by the AASB, and for the purpose of this

report are called Australian equivalents to IFRS (“AIFRS”) to distinguish from

previous Australian GAAP. The financial reports of the Company also comply

with IFRSs and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting

Standards Board.

This is the Company’s first financial report prepared in accordance with

Australian Accounting Standards, being AIFRS and AASB 1 First Time

Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting

Standards has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to AIFRS

has affected the reported financial position, financial performance and cash

flows of the Company is provided in note 23.

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars.

The financial report is prepared on the historical cost basis.

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with Australian Accounting

Standards requires management to make judgements, estimates and

assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of

assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated

assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors

that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of

which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of

assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual

results may differ from these estimates. These accounting policies have been

consistently applied by the Company.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing

basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in

which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the

period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of Australian

Accounting Standards that have significant effect on the financial report and

estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are

discussed in note 1.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the

Company and to all periods presented in the financial report and in preparing

an opening AIFRS balance sheet at 1 April 2004 for the purposes of the

transition to Australian Accounting Standards – AIFRS.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Owned assets

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or deemed cost

less accumulated depreciation (see below) and impairment losses (see

accounting policy (g)).

Certain items of property, plant and equipment that had been revalued to fair

value on or prior to 1 April 2004, the date of transition to Australian

Accounting Standards - AIFRSs, are measured on the basis of deemed cost,

being the revalued amount at the date of that revaluation.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different 

useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property, 

plant and equipment.

(ii) Leased assets

Leases in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. 

Lease payments are accounted for as described in accounting policy.

Property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the 

definition of investment property may be classified as investment property 

on a property-by-property basis.

(iii) Subsequent costs

The Company recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant

and equipment the cost of replacing part of such an item when that cost is

incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within

the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured

reliably. All other costs are recognised in the income statement as an

expense as incurred.

(iv) Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line or

reducing balance basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item

of property, plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated. The estimated

useful lives in the current and comparative periods are as follows:

2006 2005

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold improvements 3% to 20% 3% to 13%

Boats 13% to 50% 13% to 50%

Plant and equipment 13% to 50% 13% to 50%

The residual value, if not insignificant, is reassessed annually.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at their cost less impairment losses

(see accounting policy (g)).

(e) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net

realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances call and team

deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a

component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement

of cash flows.

(g) Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets, other than investment

property and inventories (see accounting policy (e)) are reviewed at each

balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of

impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is

estimated (see accounting policy g (i)). 

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset

or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment

losses are recognised in the income statement, unless an asset has

previously been revalued, in which case the impairment loss is recognised

as a reversal to the extent of that previous revaluation with any excess

recognised through profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are

allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to

cash-generating units (group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying

amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

(i) Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of the Company’s investments in held-to-maturity

securities and receivables carried at amortised cost is calculated as the

present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original

effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial

recognition of these financial assets). Receivables with a short duration 

are not discounted.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their fair value less

costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future

cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount

rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money

and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate

largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for

the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

(ii) Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of a held-to-maturity security or receivable

carried at amortised cost is reversed if the subsequent increase in

recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after

the impairment recognised.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been

determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had

been recognised.

(h) Interest-bearing borrowings

Current accounting policy

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less

attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-

bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between

cost and redemption value being recognised in the income statement over

the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Comparative period policy

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised at their principal amount, subject

to set-off arrangements. Interest expense is accrued at the contracted rate

and included in Note 10 Trade and Other Payables. 

(i) Taxation

No provision has been made for income tax as the Company is exempt

under Section 50-45 of the Income Tax Assessment Act (1997), provided it

continues as a sporting club predominately encouraging and promoting the

sport of yachting, boating, cruising for pleasure and the building and sailing

of yachts and boats. Accordingly tax affect accounting has not been adopted

by the Company.

(j) Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are

recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred.

(ii) Long-term service benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term service benefits, other

than pension plans, is the amount of future benefit that employees have

earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The

obligation is calculated using expected future increases in wage and salary

rates including related on-costs and expected settlement dates, and is

discounted using rates for Commonwealth Government bonds at the balance

sheet date which have maturity dates approximating to the terms of the

Company’s obligations.

(iii) Wages, salaries, annual leave, sick leave and non-monetary benefits

Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries, annual leave and sick

leave that are expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date

represent present obligations resulting from employees’ services provided to

reporting date, are calculated at undiscounted amounts based on

remuneration wage and salary rates that the Company expects to pay as at

reporting date including related on-costs, such as workers compensation

insurance and payroll tax.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Non-accumulation non-momentary benefits such as medical care, housing

and free or subsidised goods and services, are expensed based on the net

marginal cost to the Company as the benefits are taken by the employees.

(k) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at cost.

(l) Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a

present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is

probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting

the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks

specific to the liability.

(i) Restoration costs

A provision for restoration costs is recognised when an obligation exists to

restore certain sites for the effect of the Company’s operations.

The provision is the best estimate of the present value of the expenditure

required to settle the restoration obligation at the reporting date. The amount

is reviewed annually and changes recognised at the end of the reporting

period.

(m) Revenue

(i) Goods sold and services rendered

Revenue from the sale of goods comprises revenue earned from the

provision of beverage and other goods and is recognised in the income

statement when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been

transferred to the buyer. Revenue from services to members and other

patrons of the Company is recognised in the income statement when the

services are provided. No revenue is recognised if there are significant

uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, the costs incurred

or to be incurred cannot be measured reliably, there is a risk of return of

goods or there is continuing management involvement with the goods.

Subscriptions

Subscription fees are taken into account on an accruals basis and the

portion relating to the ensuing year is transferred to subscriptions in advance.

Yard and marina

Yard and marina revenue consists of casual and permanent berthing fees,

hardstand fees, locker fees and tender fees provided to members and other

patrons of the club.  Yard and marina revenue is recognised when the goods

or services are provided.

Sailing revenue

Sailing revenue consists of ferry charter fees, race entry fees, sponsorship

and other associated income.  Sailing revenue is recognised when the goods

or services are provided for all revenue except sponsorship which is

recognised as it accrues.

(ii) Rental income

Rental income from property is recognised in the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are

recognised as an integral part of the total rental income.

(n) Expenses

(i) Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income

statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives

received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the

total lease expense and spread over the lease term.

ii) Finance lease payments

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and

the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to

each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate

of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

(iii) Net financing costs

Net financing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using

the effective interest method, dividend income, and interest receivable on

funds invested. Interest income is recognised in the income statement as it

accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised

in the income statement on the date the entity’s right to receive payments is

established which in the case of quoted securities is ex-dividend date. The

interest expense component of finance lease payments is recognised in the

income statement using the effective interest rate method

(o) Goods and services tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of 

goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of GST incurred 

is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In these circumstances, the

GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as 

part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The

net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is

included as a current asset or liability in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The

GST components of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities

which are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority are classified

as operating cash flows.

(p) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged

either in providing products or services (business segment), or in providing

products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical

segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those

of other segments.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)

1. Accounting estimates and judgements

Management discussed with the Audit, Planning & Risk Committee the development, selection and disclosure of the Company’s critical accounting

policies and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates.

2. Segment Reporting

The Company’s operations and customers are located predominantly in Sydney, New South Wales. The Company provides promotion for

participation in yachting including the sport of sailing and ocean racing facilities.

3. Other expenses 2006 2005
$ $

Increase in provisions 173,504 139,380

4. Auditor’s remuneration

Audit services

Auditors of the Company

KPMG Australia:
Audit and review of financial reports 31,000 31,000

31,000 31,000

Other services

Auditors of the Company

KPMG Australia:
Other assurance services 5,000 5,000

Taxation services 1,000 1,000

6,000 6,000

5. Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances 371,088 175,907

Cash on hand 22,300 22,300

ATM clearing - 79,350

Sundry cash 15,953 10,969

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 409,341 288,526

6. Trade and other receivables

Current

Trade receivables 224,961 196,691

Other receivables 139,766 121,553

Total receivables 364,727 318,244

Trade receivables are shown net of impairment losses amounting to $5,643 (2005: $7,500) recognised in the current year, and arising from the

unlikely payment by two receivables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)

7. Inventories 2006 2005
$ $

Finished goods 104,534 116,600

104,534 116,600

8. Prepayments

Prepayments - 155,889

- 155,889

9. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold improvements 

At cost 10,787,577 10,787,577

Accumulated depreciation (3,114,924) (2,515,052)

7,672,653 8,272,525

Boats

At cost 542,958 393,068

Accumulated depreciation (192,539) (137,379)

350,419 255,689

Plant and equipment 

At cost 1,470,437 1,438,755

Accumulated depreciation (1,046,664) (857,932)

423,773 580,823

Total property, plant and equipment at net book value 8,446,845 9,109,037

Total property, plant and equipment 8,446,845 9,109,037
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)

Leasehold Plant and
improvements Boats equipment Total

$ $ $ $

Cost

Balance at 1 April 2004 10,775,850 384,831 1,257,421 12,418,102 

Other acquisitions 43,840 8,481 122,849 175,170 

Transfers (29,500) - 71,159 41,659 

Disposals (2,613) (244) (12,674) (15,531)

Balance at 31 March 2005 10,787,577 393,068 1,438,755 12,619,400 

Balance at 1 April 2005 10,787,577 393,068 1,438,755 12,619,400 

Other acquisitions - 149,890 35,158 185,048 

Disposals - - (3,476) (3,476)

Balance at 31 March 2006 10,787,577 542,958 1,470,437 12,800,972 

Depreciation and impairment losses

Balance at 1 April 2004 1,991,320 88,550 676,910 2,756,780 

Depreciation charge for the year 523,732 48,829 181,022 753,583 

Disposals - - -

Balance at 31 March 2005 2,515,052 137,379 857,932 3,510,363 

Balance at 1 April 2005 2,515,052 137,379 857,932 3,510,363 

Depreciation charge for the year 599,872 55,160 191,326 846,358 

Disposals - - (2,594) (2,594)

Balance at 31 March 2006 3,114,924 192,539 1,046,664 4,354,127 

Carrying amounts

At 1 April 2004 8,784,530 296,281 580,511 9,661,322

At 31 March 2005 8,272,525 255,689 580,823 9,109,037

At 1 April 2005 8,272,525 255,689 580,823 9,109,037

At 31 March 2006 7,672,653 350,419 423,773 8,446,845

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)

10. Trade and other payables 2006 2005
$ $

Trade creditors 345,005 472,179

Non-trade payables and accrued expense 387,849 626,966

732,854 1,099,145

11. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Company’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings. For more information
about the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk, see note 16.

Current liabilities

Hire purchase liabilities – secured 1,467,507 452,380

Floating rate notes – unsecured - 300,000

1,467,507 752,380 

Non-current liabilities

Bank bill acceptance facility – secured - -

Hire purchase liabilities – secured 301,095 1,643,603

Floating rate notes – unsecured 350,000 550,000

651,095 2,193,603

Financing facilities

The Company has access to the following lines of credit:

Total facilities available

Bank overdraft 100,000 100,000

Bill acceptance facility - 600,000

100,000 700,000

Facilities utilised at reporting date

Bank overdraft 31,652 -

Bill acceptance facility - -

31,652 -

Facilities not/(over) utilised at reporting date

Bank overdraft 68,348 100,000

Bill acceptance facility - 600,000

68,348 700,000

Bank overdraft

Interest on the bank overdraft is charged at prevailing market rates. The interest rate for the overdraft as at 31 March 2006 is 9.7% (2005: 9.7%).

The bank overdraft and other facilities made available by the Company’s bankers are secured by registered first mortgages over all assets of the

Company. The bank overdraft is payable on demand and is subject to annual review.

Floating rate notes

Cruising Yacht Club of Australia floating rate notes are unsecured liabilities with a term of up to three years. The loans bear interest, payable

quarterly on the basis of the aggregate of the 90 day bank bill rate on the first working day of the quarter plus 2.3% per annum. The interest rate as

at 31 March 2006 is 7.99% (2005: 7.7267%)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)

12. Employee benefits 2006 2005
$ $

Current

Liability for annual leave 105,589 87,595

Liability for long service leave 39,265 35,735

Sick leave 22,560 24,960

167,414 148,290

Non-current

Liability for annual leave 97,687 71,711

Liability for long service leave 35,461 10,268

Sick leave 7,417 28,704

140,565 110,683

13. Provisions

Site restoration

Balance at 1 April 2005 2,305,522 2,187,402

Provisions made during the year - -

Provisions used during the year - -

Provisions reversed during the year - -

Unwind of discount 124,498 118,120

Balance at 31 March 2006 2,430,020 2,305,522

Current - -

Non-current 2,430,020 2,305,522

2,430,020 2,305,522

Site restoration

This provision represents the present value of the estimated expenditure required to settle the site restoration obligations pursuant to the

Company’s lease of the land and waterways.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)

14. Deposits 2006 2005
$ $

Non-current

Marina security deposits held 253,265 245,468

15. Capital and reserves

Reconciliation of movement in retained Earnings

Balance at 1 April 3,027,691 3,054,093

Total recognised income and expense 344,176 (26,402)

Balance at 31 March 3,371,867 3,027,691

16. Financial instruments

Exposure to credit and interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the Company’s business.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities are subject to interest rate risk. The Company does not use derivatives to minimise this risk and these

will fluctuate in accordance with movements in the market interest rates.  
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)

Note Effective More
Interest 6 Months 6–12 1–2 2–5 than

Rate Total or less Months Years Years 5 years
$ $ $ $ $ $

2006

Assets

Cash assets 5 5.4% 409,341 409,341 - - - -

Receivables 6 - 364,727 364,727 - - - -

Prepayments 8 - - - - - - -

774,068 774,068 - - - -

Liabilities

Current

Floating rate notes 11 7.99% - - - - - -

Hire purchase 11 7.88% 1,467,507 - 1,467,507 - - -

Non-current

Floating rate notes 11 7.99% 350,000 - - 350,000 - -

Hire purchase 11 7.88% 301,095 - - - 301,095 -

2,118,602 - 1,467,507 350,000 301,095 -

16. Financial instruments (continued)

Effective interest rates and repricing analysis

In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities, the following table indicates their effective interest rates at the
balance sheet date and the periods in which they reprice.

Note Effective More
Interest 6 Months 6–12 1–2 2–5 than

Rate Total or less Months Years Years 5 years
$ $ $ $ $ $

2005

Assets

Cash assets 5 5.25% 288,526 288,526 - - - -

Receivables 6 - 318,244 318,244 - - - -

Prepayments 8 - 155,889 155,889 - - - -

762,659 762,659 - - - -

Liabilities

Current

Floating rate notes 11 7.73% 300,000 - - 300,000 - -

Hire purchase 11 7.88% 452,380 - 452,380 - - -

Non-current

Floating rate notes 11 7.73% 550,000 - - 550,000 - -

Hire purchase 11 7.88% 1,643,603 - - - 1,643,603 -

2,945,983 - 452,380 850,000 1,643,603 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)

16. Financial instruments (continued)

Fair values

The fair values together with the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet are as follows:

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value

Note 2006 2006 2005 2005
$ $ $ $

Trade and other receivables 6 364,727 364,727 318,244 318,244

Cash and cash equivalents 5 409,341 409,341 288,256 288,256

Trade and other payables 10 732,854 732,854 1,099,145 1,099,145

Interest bearing liabilities 11 2,118,602 2,118,602 2,945,983 2,945,983

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments reflected 

in the table.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Fair value is calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest cash flows. 

Finance lease liabilities 

The fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at market interest rates for homogeneous lease

agreements. The estimated fair values reflect change in interest rates.

Trade and other receivables/payables

For receivables/payables with a remaining life of less than one year, the notional amount is deemed to reflect the fair value. All other

receivables/payables are discounted to determine the fair value.

17. Commitments 2006 2005
$ $

Non cancellable operating lease expense commitments 

Future operating lease commitments not provided for in the financial statements and payable

Within one year 442,550 472,000

One year or later and no longer than five years 1,968,750 1,888,000

Later than five years 1,242,500 1,714,500

3,653,800 4,074,500

The Company leases property and water space for the Clubhouse and marina under operating leases expiring in 12 years and 14 years
respectively (assuming exercise of options). Lease payments are adjusted periodically to market rates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)

17. Commitments (continued) Note 2006 $2005
$ $

Hire purchase commitments

Hire purchase payments are payable as follows:

Within one year 1,467,507 612,608

One year or later and no longer than five years 730,173 2,014,712

2,197,680 2,627,320

Less future hire purchase charges (429,078) (531,337)

1,768,602 2,095,983

Hire purchase liabilities provided for in the financial statements:

Current 16 1,467,507 452,380

Non current 16 301,095 1,643,603

Total hire purchase liabilities 1,768,602 2,095,983

18. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the period 344,176 (26,402)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 846,091 805,692

Amounts set aside for provisions 177,280 148,880

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (300) 15,531

Operating profit before changes in working capital and provisions 1,367,247 943,701

(Increase)/decrease in receivables (46,482) 117,728

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 12,066 (48,351)

(Increase)/decrease in other assets 155,889 (24,735)

Increase/(decrease) in payables (366,291) 233,931

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 13,148 (7,800)

Net cash from operating activities 1,135,577 1,214,474
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)

19. Key management personnel disclosures for non-disclosing entities

The following were key management personnel of the Company at any time during the reporting period, and unless otherwise indicated

were directors for the entire period:

Non-executive directors

G R Lavis L W Goodridge 

M C Allen G Linacre

R J Hickman R Skellet

A Green J S Walton

G R Swan C Wise

M Cranitch M R James

Executive

M Woolf

Transactions with key management personnel

No non-executive director has received any remuneration from the Company during the year.

The key management personnel compensation included in “Employee and employment expenses” are as follows:

2006 2005

$ $

Short-term employee benefits 182,503 177,300

Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director has entered into a material contract with the Company or since the end of the

previous financial year and there were no material contracts involving directors’ interests existing at year-end.

From time to time, directors of the Company, or their director-related entities, may purchase goods and services from the Company.  

These purchases are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into by other Company employees or customers and are trivial or

domestic in nature.

20. Related Parties

Floating rate notes

Floating rate notes totalling $Nil (2004: $Nil) were issued by the Company to directors or director related entities during the year. The total

amount repaid on the floating rate notes was $150,000 during 2005 (2004: $Nil) leaving a balance owing of $200,000 to directors or

director related entities at year end.

The floating rate notes were issued to F J Collins Pty Limited ATF F J Collins Superannuation Fund during 2001.  Interest is paid on these

notes as detailed in Note 11. The total interest paid was $21,954 (2005: $27,170).

Director Director related entity

G R Lavis Lavis Corporation Pty Ltd ATF Lavis Superannuation Fund

M R James J Collins Pty Limited ATF F J Collins Superannuation Fund
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)

21. Trust fund

The Company is the sole member of CYCA SOLAS Limited, a Company limited by guarantee which is the trustee of the CYCA Sydney

Hobart Yacht Race Safety of Life at Sea Trusts. The administration of the CYCA Sydney Hobart Yacht Race Safety of Life at Sea Trusts is

under the control of the separate board of CYCA SOLAS Limited. The trustee Company has a right to be indemnified out of the assets of

the trust to satisfy liabilities properly incurred by the trustee. As at 31 March 2006 the outstanding liabilities committed by the trustee on

behalf of the trust totalled $Nil (2005: $Nil). The assets of the trust are sufficient to meet this commitment.  In the event that CYCA SOLAS

Limited is wound up and unable to repay all outstanding debts, the liability of its members is limited to an amount of $10.

CYCA SOLAS Limited is a controlled entity of the Cruising Yacht Club of Australia. The Company acts as trustee for the CYCA Sydney

Hobart Yacht Race Safety of Life at Sea Trusts. The company has no transactions in its own right, and accordingly consolidated financial

statements have not been prepared.

22. Contingent liabilities

Bank guarantees

The Company has given away the following bank guarantees:

2006 2005

$ $

NSW Maritime Authority 32,903 32,903

23. Explanation of transition to AIFRSs

As stated in significant accounting policies note (a), these are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with AIFRSs.

The policies set out in the significant accounting policies section of this report have been applied in preparing the financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2006, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2005 and

in the preparation of an opening AIFRS balance sheet at 1 April 2004 (the Company’s date of transition).

In preparing its opening AIFRS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in

accordance with its old basis of accounting (previous GAAP). An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to AIFRSs has

affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables and the notes that

accompany the tables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)

23. Explanation of transition to AIFRSs (continued)

Reconciliation of equity 1 April 2004 31 March 2005

Effect of Effect of
Previous transition to Previous transition to

GAAP AIFRSs AIFRSs GAAP AIFRSs AIFRSs
$ $ $ $ $ $

Assets

Cash assets 67,665 - 67,665 288,526 - 288,526

Receivables 435,972 - 435,972 318,244 - 318,244

Inventories 109,908 - 109,908 116,600 - 116,600

Other 131,154 - 131,154 155,889 - 155,889

Total current assets 744,699 - 744,699 879,259 - 879,259

Property, plant & equipment a 8,849,425 759,787 9,609,212 8,297,140 811,897 9,109,037

Total non-current assets 8,849,425 759,787 9,609,212 8,297,140 811,897 9,109,037

Total assets 9,594,124 759,787 10,353,911 9,176,399 811,897 9,988,296

Liabilities

Payables 889,214 - 889,214 1,099,145 - 1,099,145

Interest bearing liabilities 339,218 - 339,218 752,380 - 752,380

Employee entitlements 125,557 - 125,557 148,290 - 148,290

Income received in advance 98,668 - 98,668 105,514 - 105,514

Total current liabilities 1,452,657 - 1,452,657 2,105,329 - 2,105,329

Interest bearing liabilities 3,391,708 - 3,391,708 2,193,603 - 2,193,603

Employee entitlements 112,156 - 112,156 110,683 - 110,683

Deposits 260,114 - 260,114 245,468 - 245,468

Provisions                            a -  2,187,402 2,187,402 - 2,305,522 2,305,522

Total non-current liabilities 3,763,978 2,187,402 5,951,380 2,549,754 2,305,522 4,855,276

Total liabilities 5,216,635 2,187,402 7,404,037 4,655,083 2,305,522 6,960,605

Net assets 4,377,489 (1,427,615) 2,949,874 4,521,316 (1,493,625) 3,027,691

Equity

Members funds 4,377,489 (1,427,615) 2,949,874 4,521,316 (1,493,625) 3,027,691

Total equity 4,377,489 (1,427,615) 2,949,874 4,521,316 (1,493,625) 3,027,691
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2006 (Continued)

23. Explanation of transition to AIFRSs (continued)

Reconciliation of profit for 2005 Effect of
transition to

Previous GAAP AIFRSs AIFRSs
$ $ $

Total Revenue 8,259,838 97,173 8,357,011

Other Income 111,687 (97,173) 14,514

Operating expense 7,182,010 - 7,182,010

Earning before depreciation, amortisation and financing costs 1,189,515 - 1,189,515

Depreciation and amortisation expenses                              a 753,583 52,109 805,692

Borrowing costs 292,105 - 292,105

Interest expense - 118,120 118,120

Net financing costs                                                           a 1,045,688 170,229 1,215,917

Profit before tax 143,827 170,229 (26,402)

Income tax expens - - -

Profit after tax 143,827 170,229 (26,402)

Notes to the reconciliation of equity

(a) An obligation exists to restore certain sites for the effect of the Company’s operations at the end of its respective land and waterways

lease’s. Under previous GAAP, the cost of rectification was recognised as an expense when incurred.

In accordance with AIFRSs, restoration costs should be recognised as a part of the cost of assets and as a provision at the time of the

obligating event.

The effect of entry is to increase Plant, property and equipment by $864,008 at 1 April 2004 and $811,897 at 31 March 2005, increase

provisions by $2,187,402 at 1 April 2004 and $2,305,522 at 31 March 2005, to increase depreciation expense by $52,109 at 31 March

2005 and, to increase interest expense by $118,120 at 31 March 2005.

24. Events subsequent to reporting date

Hire purchase

The hire purchase for the marina was renegotiated subsequent to year end and extended for a further 5 years. Accordingly, the obligation

recognised as a current interest bearing liability in the balance sheet in the amount of $1,467,507 will not be required to be settled in full

within 12 months of balance date, and it would now be shown as a non-current liability.
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Directors’ Declaration

In the opinion of the directors of Cruising Yacht Club of Australia (“the Company”):

(a) the financial statements and notes, set out on pages 22 to 40, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2006 and of its performance, as represented by the results of

its operations and its cash flows, for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

Dated at Sydney this 25th day of May 2006.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

G R Lavis G Swan

Commodore Treasurer
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Independent Audit Report

Scope

The financial report and directors' responsibility

The financial report comprises the income statement, statement of

recognised income and expense, balance sheet, statement of cash flows,

accompanying notes to the financial statements (Notes 1 to 24), and the

directors’ declaration set out on pages 22 to 41 for Cruising Yacht Club

of Australia (“the Company”), for the year ended 31 March 2006. 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and

true and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with the

Corporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for the maintenance

of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed

to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies

and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report. The directors

are also responsible for preparing the relevant reconciling information

regarding the adjustments as required under Australian Accounting

Standard AASB 1 First-time Adoption of Australian equivalents to

International Financial Reporting Standards.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion to

the members of the Company. Our audit was conducted in accordance

with Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable

assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material

misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as

the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent

limitations of internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather

than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all

material misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the

financial report presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act

2001, Australian Accounting Standards, and other mandatory financial

reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our

understanding of the Company’s financial position, of its performance 

as represented by the results of its operations, changes in equity and

cash flow.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, 

which included:

• examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial report, and

• assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and

disclosures used and the reasonableness of significant accounting

estimates made by the directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal

controls over financial reporting when determining the nature and extent

of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on

internal controls.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the financial report of Cruising Yacht Club of Australia is

in accordance with:

(a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at

31 March 2006 and of its performance for the year ended on that date;

and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards, and the

Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.

KPMG

Cameron Roan

Partner

Sydney

25 May 2006

to the members of Cruising Yacht Club of Australia
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Disclaimer

The Company has chosen to disclose additional financial information which it is under no legal obligation to present.

This additional financial information presented on page 44 is in accordance with the books and records of the Cruising Yacht Club of Australia which

have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our statutory audits of the Company.  It will be appreciated that our statutory audits did

not cover all details of the additional financial information. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on such financial information and no warranty

of accuracy or reliability is given.

In accordance with our Firm policy, we advise that neither the Firm nor any member or employee of the Firm undertakes responsibility arising in any

way whatsoever to any person (other than the Company) in respect of such information, including any errors or omissions therein, arising through

negligence or otherwise however caused.

KPMG

Sydney

25 May 2006
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2006 2005 2004

$ $ $

Administration

Subscriptions Received 909,142 910,261 884,561

Clothing Sales 139,098 199,009 101,413

Property Rental 214,313 201,048 154,096

Sundry Income 294,503 272,329 251,047

1,557,057 1,582,647 1,391,117

Less Consolidated Expenses 115,806 152,997 107,549

1,441,251 1,429,650 1,283,568

Food & Beverage

Bars 1,640,058 1,666,538 1,599,852

Dining Room 185,391 180,747 160,140

Commissions Received 168,327 159,556 146,992

Functions 495,300 464,311 388,344

2,489,076 2,471,152 2,295,328

Less

Consolidated Expenses 2,856,267 2,796,444 2,689,193

-367,191 -325,292 -393,865

Yard & Marina

Marina 1,869,958 1,919,843 1,867,704

Yard & Slipway 16,679 15,947 17,309

1,886,637 1,935,790 1,885,013

Less 

Consolidated Expenses 1,896,379 2,083,673 1,617,748

-9,742 -147,883 267,265

Sailing Activities

Youth Sailing Academy 359,153 242,550 304,647

Season Sailing 271,937 309,769 266,837

Major Races 916,893 1,224,294 1,107,904

1,547,983 1,776,613 1,679,388

Less

Consolidated Expenses 2,268,124 2,759,490 2,813,931

-720,141 -982,877 -1,134,543

Operating Profit for the Year 344,176 -26,402 22,425

Supplementary Information 

relating to Financial Performance for the year ended 31 March 2006
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BRAITLING J.B 1997
BRAMLEY R.G 1980
BRAMWELL N.W. 1999
BRAN C. 2005
BRASHER R.A 1994
BRAY D. 2005
BREAKWELL G 2000
BRENAC B.G 1953
BRENAC R.W. 1967
BRENNAN C.J 1964
BRENNAN N. 1991
BRENNAN D. 1997
BREWER C.J. 2004
BREWSTER M 2001
BRIERTY A. 2006

BRINDLEY R.G. 1995

BRINSMEAD P. 1975

BROAD I. 1978

BROADHURST S.A 1986

BROCKWELL S 2001
BRODZIAK J.A 1965
BROOKS J.L 1971
BROOKS K.D 1986
BROOKS S. 2005
BROOM S.W 1988
BROUGHTON P.H. 1997
BROUGHTON M.E.H 1998
BROWN A.L 1970
BROWN J.S 1993
BROWN E.I 1994
BROWN A. 1998
BROWN G. 1998
BROWN R. 1999
BROWN K 2000

Members List
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BROWN R 2002
BROWN J.W. 2002
BROWN N. 2004
BROWN C. 2004
BROWNELL DJ 2001
BRUCE R.R. 1999
BRYON-EDMOND S.E. 1997
BUCKLAND A 2002
BUCKLE J. 1995

BUCKLEY D. 1988

BULL R.C 1966

BULL C 2001

BULLARD A. 2005

BULLARD A.M 2005

BUNDY B. 2002
BUNN J.E 1998
BUNTER R 2004
BURGESS J. 1997
BURKE T 2000
BURKE D. 2005
BURLING N. 2000
BURNET S.J 1993
BURROWS R. 1999
BUSH P. 1986
BUSH G. 2005
BUTLER B. 1997
BUTLER A. 2004
BUTTERY B. 1981
BUTTROSE E.I 1997
BYRNE A.W 1964
BYRNE E.L 1985
BYRNE JM 2001
BYRNE Y 2003
BYRON S.J. 1996
CABBLE R.J 1998
CABLE A.L 1964
CAIRNS D. 2004
CALDWELL M.J.P. 1995
CALDWELL E.C. 1997
CALDWELL F.G. 1997
CALDWELL M.J. 1997
CALDWELL B.F. 2002
CALKIN J 2001
CALLAGHAN M L 1995
CALVERT-JONES J.A 1988
CAMERON M.A 1980
CAMERON J.D 1998
CAMERON G. J. 1999
CAMERON J. A. 1999
CAMERON R. 1999
CAMERON C 2002
CAMERON E.L 2004
CAMERON M. 2004
CAMPBELL A.D 1950
CAMPBELL G.F 1965
CAMPBELL P.M 1971
CAMPBELL A.R 1978
CAPONE G. 1983
CARDOW-CLINTON K P 2001
CARMICHAEL J.G 1989
CARPENTER J.B. 1982
CARPENTER E.J 1994
CARR B. 1984
CARR A. 1991
CARR A.M. 1999
CARRICK B.K 1984
CARRINGTON G.R. 2006
CARROLL D. 1994
CARROLL J. 1999
CARTER L.J 1972
CARTER-BRACKEN G. 1977
CASE B.J 2004
CASEY B.H 1973
CASEY P.W 1975
CASEY T.G 1995
CASHIN G.M 2005
CASHMAN N. P. 1999
CASSIDY P. 1994

CASSIM N.G 1960
CASSIM J. 1965
CASSIM G.N 1972
CAUGHLAN C. 1999
CAUSBROOK D 2003
CAUSBROOK M 2004
CAUSBROOK T W 2004
CAWSE R.H 1973
CAWSE N. 2004
CAWTHORN D.A. 1999
CHADWICK J.E 1983
CHADWICK D. 1998
CHALMERS A.J 1994
CHAMPION deCRESPIGNYR.P. 1994
CHAMPTALOUP D.R. 1997
CHAMPTALOUP J 2001
CHAPMAN R.O 1963
CHARODY P.R 1977
CHARODY J.A. 1998
CHEN S.J. 2003
CHEN C.J. 2003
CHERRY J.M. 2002
CHOWN A.J 1986
CHRIMES M.J. 1995
CHRISTIAN E 2002
CHRISTIAN J.R.H. 2003
CHRISTIANAKIS A.C. 2003
CHRISTIANAKIS F.W. 2003
CHRISTIANAKIS L. 2003
CHRISTIANAKIS T.W. 2003
CHRISTIE N.E 1978
CHRISTIE J.B 1981
CHRISTOFFERSEN J.B 1966
CHRISTOFFERSEN D. 1994
CHUA H.J 2004
CLARK R.J 1983
CLARK S.J. 2001
CLARK G 2002
CLARK A.R. 2003
CLARK M.N. 2003
CLARK D.G 2004
CLARK S.L. 2005
CLARKE B. 1998
CLARKSON K.E. 2003
CLAYTON B. 1999
CLEMENTS M.A 1981
CLEMENTS C 2001
CLINTON J. 1997
CLINTON B.W. 1999
CLINTON Z.M. 1999
CLINTON J. 2000
CLITHEROE P. 2006
CLOUT T 2003
CLUBB A.G 1975
COBBY P.W 1994
COCHRANE A. 1993
COCHRANE E 2001
COCHRANE J 2001
COCHRANE L 2001
COE D. R. 1999
COHEN C. 2005
COLE M.A 1975
COLE J.A. 1998
COLEMAN J.G. 1997
COLEMAN J 2001
COLFELT D.J 1972
COLLETT R.L 1969
COLLETT L 1998
COLLIBEE S.A.J 1998
COLLINGWOOD SMITHJ. 2003
COLLINS P.F 1984
COLLINS J.G 1992
COLLINS M. 1998
COLLIS B.P 1994
COMMINS AV 2003
CONLON S.D. 1999
CONNELL L. 1992
CONNOLLY J.M 1976

CONNOLLY A.P 1985
CONNOLLY J. 1998
CONNOLLY A. 2005
CONNOLLY L.K. 2005
CONNOLLY J.C. 2006
CONSTABLE J. 1990
COOK J.E 1985
COOK R.O 1986
COOK A.J. 1997
COOK C 2001
COOK J.T. 2001
COOKE J.E.A. 2001
COOLEY A.E 1974
COOLEY J.A 1994
COOLEY M. 1999
COOLEY J.E. 2001
COOMBS P.A 2004
COOPER M.J. 1995
COOPER A.L 1996
COOPER R.E 1998
COOPER D.N. 1999
COOPER M.A. 1999
COOPER G. 2003
COOPER M. 2004
COOPES A 2001
COOREY J. 2005
COPELAND M.R 1977
COPLAND B. 2003
COPLEY A.R 1982
COPP D. 1986
COPPIN A.R.B 2005
CORBETT LR 2001
CORKE A. 1986
CORMACK B. 1995
CORNELL C. 2005
CORNER J.S 1966
CORNISH N.H. 2002
CORRIGAN P. 1967
CORSTORPHAN G. 1986
CORTIS V.A 1994
COSGRAVE P.S 1955
COSGROVE L.A 1958
COSTELLO-LUKE H. 2005
COTTEE AO K. 1993
COTTIS W. 2004
COTTON G.P. 2001
COTTON P.C. 2001
COTTON D.P. 2005
COTTON L.D. 2005
COWAN C.D 1980
COWAN H. 1994
COWDROY D.A. 2005
COWELL A. 2004
COWEN G. 1981
COWLE A 2001
COWPE J.C. 2003
COX P.J 1969
COX O. 1994
COX A.M 1998
COX P.J 1998
COX P. 2000
COXON M.J 1985
COYLE A.D 1986
CRADDOCK F.J 1994
CRAFOORD C 2001
CRAIGIE R.S 1992
CRANE S.F. 2005
CRANITCH M.J. 1997
CRAVEN A.N 1986
CRAVEN J.G 1997
CRAWFORD R.A 1994
CRAWFORD C.E 2005
CREECY J. 1998
CRICHTON N.A 1985
CRICHTON-BROWN R. 1964
CRIMMINGS E.V. 1998
CRIMMINGS T. 1999
CRITHARIS W 2002

CROFT M.H. 2005
CROOKSHANKS S. 1998
CROOKSHANKS L. 1998
CROPLEY G.D 1993
CROPLEY F 2000
CRUMP T.J 1981
CULLEN A.J 2004
CULPAN D.L. 1999
CULPIN C.W. 1999
CUMMINS N.P. 2002
CUNNINGHAM R. 1999
CURGENVEN C. 1991
CURNOW D. 2003
CURRAN C.P 1993
CURRIE D.J 1977
CURRIE R.I. 2001
CURRIE D C 2004
CURTIS J.S. 1996
CUSMANO A.M. 1999
CUTTING D 2004
DAGGER C.M 1985
DAHL J. 2005
DALE I.W 1984
DALEY R. 1985
DALEY J.A 1988
DALGLIESH S.J. 1994
DALLEN N.R 2004
DALTON T.J 1981
DAMMANN A. 1996
DAMROW M.N 1991
DAN A.M 1967
DARLEY-JONES P.J 1984
DARLINGTON L. 1991
DAVEN G. 2006
DAVIE A.W. 2005
DAVIES K.A 1979
DAVIES F 1985
DAVIES M.J 1988
DAVIES V.E 1988
DAVIES J.S 1995
DAVIES D.W.I 1996
DAVIES L. 1998
DAVIES S 2001
DAVIS K. 1970
DAVIS C.D 1996
DAVIS P.J. 1996
DAVIS C. 2000
DAVIS-SLADE J. 1984
DAVY W.D. 1995
DAWES J.E. 1998
DAWSON J.C 1967
DAWSON I.A. 1998
DAWSON J. 2005
DAY O.L 1985
DAY M.I 1993
DE ANGELIS J. 1999
DE LA VEGA J.A 1979
DE LAINE N. 2002
DE LAINE G 2003
De MAMIEL A. 1998
DE MEYRICK A. 2006
DE NETT H.W 1987
DE SALABERRY J 2003
DE TORRES H.C 1976
DE TORRES J.P. 1994
DE TORRES V. 1994
DE TORRES M.H. 1996
DE TORRES A.C. 1997
DE YOUNG A P 2006
DEAN D.T. 1999
DEBENHAM E 2003
DEBNEY R.S. 1998
DELANEY M.R 1984
DELANEY A. 1986
DELL D. 1958
DEMEYRICK A.L. 2003
DEMEYRICK A.E. 2003
DEMEYRICK A.B. 2003
DEMEYRICK J.M. 2003
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D’EMILIO V. 1975
D’EMILIO M.L. 2000
DENISON H.P 1984
DENOON JM 2001
DERHAM CJ 2001
DERHAM Y.T. 2001
DERMODY E.G 1957
DEVERY B.A 1970
DEVLIN T.G. 2003
DEXTER R.E. 1995
DICKINSON A P 1995
DICKINSON AD 2001
DICKINSON N 2001
DICKSON D.B 1963
DICKSON I.H 1993
DIETHELM J.B 1961
DILLON S. 2002
DIMARAS T. 2005
DIXON C.E 1993
DIXON-HUGHES J. 1963
DOCK J.S 1998
DODD J. 1983
DOEL R.A 1998
DOMINGUEZ J.T. 2006
DONNELLEY M.C 1997
DONOGHUE P.K 1985
DONOVAN S. 1994
DOOLEY L. 1987
DOOLIN M.V 1992
DORAN P.H. 1999
DOVER P.S. 2006
DOVEY R.P 1983
DOWE A.R 2004
DOWER C. 1999
DOWLING M.R 1965
DOWLING H.R 1992
DOWNES S. 2002
DOYLE D. 1994
DRAKE-BROCKMAN P.N 1998
DRANEY P 2004
DREDGE H.J 1982
DRENT M.P 1977
DREW E.J 1966
DREW R.S 1993
DREW E. 1998
DREW J.E 1998
DREW S.J. 1998
DRISCOLL K 2001
DRUMMOND JS 2002
DRYDEN J 2003
DUDLEY V.G 2005
DUFF S.M 1993
DUFFELL C 2001
DUFFELL I.W. 2001
DUFFELL S 2001
DUFFIELD P. 1994
DUFFY S. 2005
DUFFY N. 2005
DUGGAN D.A 1978
DUNN M.B 1998
DUNN E. 1999
DUNN R.J 2004
DUNN L.P. 2005
DUNNETT K. 2002
DUNPHY A 2003
DUNPHY D 2003
DUNPHY P 2003
DUPREE J.R 1998
DURIE J.P 2004
DUSSELDORP T. 1979
EADIE P.A 1978
EADY A. 1970
EASLEY N.L. 2002
EASTMAN S. 1999
EASTON S.W 1971
EASTWOOD D.R. 1994
EBENEZER I.T. 1994
EDGINTON A. 1998
EDGINTON C. 1998
EDGINTON J 1998
EDWARDS S.R 1977

EDWARDS G 2001
EDWARDS AM 2002
EDWARDS PJ 2002
EDWARDS J.W. 2003
EDWARDS-PARTON A. 2004
EISENHUTH J. 1999
ELLIOTT H.J. 1996
ELLIOTT S. 1997
ELLIOTT F.J. 2004
ELLIS R. 1988
ELLIS C. 1995
ELLIS D.M. 1999
ELSASS G.A. 2003
ELSBURY B. 1999
ELSBURY C.E. 1999
ELSEGOOD M. 2000
EMERSON B.N 1994
EMERSON P E 2001
ENGLISH J. 2005
EPSTEIN S.D 1990
ERLING E 2002
ERSKINE J.R.M 1998
ERSKINE K. 2003
ETTER F. 1998
EVANGELINIDIS T.J 1979
EVANS A.W 1962
EVANS G.N 1971
EVANS B 2003
EVANS W.W. 2005
EWBANK J.C 1989
EWEN R. 1986
EWEN V.J. 1986
FABBRO J.R. 2003
FABULIC L. 1984
FAGENCE P. 1998
FALCONER M. 1986
FALLON P. 1995
FALSON R. 1964
FARREN S.M 2005
FARREN-PRICE J.A 1980
FARWAGI D.M 1989
FATOUROS K.J. 1995
FAWCUS J.E 1996
FEBO L. 2003
FELTON A.E. 2004
FEREDAY J.A 1984
FERGUSON E.H 1979
FERGUSON D.A 1994
FERGUSON D. 1996
FERRIS W.D 1979
FERRIS P. 2004
FEWSTER D. 1998
FIELDING R. 1999
FIELDS K.O 1998
FIELDS D 2000
FINCH T.A 1995
FINCH A. 1998
FINCH P. 1998
FINDLAY J. 1997
FINDLAY W.S 1998
FINLAYSON A. 2004
FINNERTY T.M 1988
FINNERTY A. 2002
FINNEY R.B 2004
FIRMIN M 2004
FIRMSTONE P.J 1972
FIRTH-SMITH J. 1994
FISCHER S. 1962
FISHER D. 1997
FLAHVIN T.J. 2002
FLANNERY J. 2004
FLETCHER M.F 1970
FOLBIGG B. 1976
FOLBIGG H. C. 1999
FOLBIGG J.M. 1999
FOLEY G. 1989
FOLLAND T.J 2005
FOOTER G.L. 2005
FORBES N.A. 1995
FORBES K.D. 1997

FORD D.J. 2001
FORDHAM J 2001
FORMOSA M.A 1994
FORSTNER M. 2005
FORSTNER L. 2005
FORTUNE R. 1998
FORWOOD T.W. 1999
FOSTER D. 1997
FOSTER T.M 1998
FOSTER D.F. 2002
FOX N 2000
FOX M 2001
FOX N 2001
FOX C.J. 2003
FOYE B.B 1989
FRAMPTON P.W 1989
FRANCIS S. 1994
FRANCIS J.R. 2001
FRANCIS L 2003
FRANK M.F 1985
FRANK E. 1993
FRANKI D.J 1992
FRANKI P.R. 1994
FRANKLIN C. 1985
FRANKS P.T 1994
FRASER R.G 1977
FRASER G.D. 1979
FRASER M. 1998
FRASER K. F. 1999
FREEDMAN L. 1987
FREEMAN G. 1971
FREEMAN K.A 1985
FREEMAN J.P. 1999
FREEMAN S.E. 2001
FREER D.G 1964
FRELINGER M. 1999
FRENCH K.G. 1994
FRENCH S 2003
FRENCH A. 2005
FROELICH C. 2000
FUJITAKE E. 1999
FUJITAKE K. 1999
FUJITAKE L. 1999
FULDE S 2000
FULDE T 2000
FULLER D. 1976
FURNESS W.F 1997
GALLAGHER M.D 1984
GALLAGHER M. 1997
GALLETTO M 2000
GALLETTO M 2000
GAM L 2002
GAMBACORTI B. 1981
GAMBACORTI A 2000
GAMBLE J. 1997
GANN P.J 2004
GARAVAN K. 1998
GARDINER P 1999
GARDNER E.B 1977
GARDNER P. 1985
GARDNER W. 1994
GARDYNE R.G. 2005
GARLICK B. 1998
GARNER J. T. 1999
GARNETT C.V 1994
GARNSEY J.J. 2006
GATLIFF S.J 2004
GAUCHAT C.A 2004
GAUCHAT M. 2004
GAWNE W.R. 2005
GAZAL S.M 1971
GAZZARD E.M 1994
GEDDES P.J 1965
GEDDES L. 1989
GEEVES C.J 1993
GEIER G.R 2004
GERKE-REINEKE A. 1999
GIBSON J.E 1992
GIBSON P.R 1992

GIBSON G.V.A 1996
GIBSON G.M. 2001
GIBSON M 2003
GIFFIN S.J 1998
GILBERT S.P 1998
GILDER J.D 1992
GILDING S.R 2004
GILL M. 1996
GILL M.J. 2004
GILLIES R.J 1988
GILLIES E. 1989
GIRDIS G.S 1954
GIRDIS S.M. 1994
GIRVAN J.S. 2005
GIRVAN N.M. 2005
GIRVAN R.E. 2005
GLANVILLE B. 2005
GLASBERG A. 2005
GLASSON R.J 1994
GODDARD J. 1975
GODDARD P.M 1978
GODDARD GG 2002
GODDARD Jnr. J.L 1976
GOGGIN C.J. 1996
GOLDSTIVER B. 1992
GOLDSTIVER P.A. 1995
GOLDSWORTHY P.B 1994
GOLOVSKY G 1996
GOLUZD J 2001
GOMER P.J. 1998
GOOCH R.J 1984
GOODBOURN A.J. 2005
GOODBUN M.J 1978
GOODE D. 1989
GOODIESON J.A 2005
GOODMAN J.M. 2003
GOODRIDGE L.W. 1994
GOODWIN P.R. 1995
GOOLEY B.R 1994
GORDON S.L 1993
GORDON M. 2003
GORMAN C.M. 1995
GORMAN M.C 1998
GORMAN Y.N 1998
GOSSON N.E 1965
GOTZE D. 1998
GOUGH H.D 1992
GOULD B.D 1966
GOWING L. 2003
GOWLLAND J.D. 2002
GOYMOUR P.C. 1999
GOYMOUR T. 1999
GRACE C.J. 2002
GRAF K. 1998
GRAHAM D.C 1980
GRAHAM C.E 1984
GRAHAM P. 1996
GRAHAM J.W. 2005
GRANGER M. 1995
GRANGER J 2001
GRANGER R 2001
GRANT C. 1995
GRANT R.K 1998
GRANT R. L. 1999
GRAY J 2001
GRAY B.N. 2004
GREEN L. 1959
GREEN A. 1989
GREEN E. 1993
GREEN M.J. 1994
GREEN I. 1996
GREEN J 2000
GREGORIAN A. 1995
GREGORY D.E. 1996
GREGORY A.W 1998
GREGORY-ROBERTS E. 1993
GRELLIS S. 1999
GREY L. 1989
GREY D.N 1998
GRIEVE H. 1979
GRIFFIN K.B 1998
GRIFFIN D.G. 2004
GRIFFITH D.C 1991
GRIFFITH M.J. 2006
GRIFFITHS A. 1999
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GRIFFITHS G. 1999
GROUNDS P. 1986
GROUNDS W.W 1991
GROUNDS W.F 1994
GROUNDS M.T. 2004
GROVE P.A. 1995
GROVE P. 2003
GROVES R.C. 1994
GROVES C.D. 1999
GRUBB R. 1982
GRUBB C 2001
GRUZMAN A B 2004
GRYLLIS C. 1986
GUANARIA I. 2003
GUANARIA J. 2003
GUDERJAHN R.S 1988
GUENTHER J 2002
GULLEY L.M 1994
GUNNERSEN T.H 2004
GUNNERSEN J.M 2004
GUNNESS B 2003
GUNNING J.P 1991
HABER A.L. 2002
HACKNEY G.B 1985
HACKNEY E.A. 2005
HAGAN A.G. 1999
HAGON W.A.B 1998
HAIK J.C 1994
HALE M. 1999
HALES S.J. 2003
HALL R.J 1967
HALL W.D 1989
HALL J 2001
HALL M.H.J. 2001
HALL I. 2005
HALLIWELL B. 2004
HALLS G.W 1976
HALLS L. 1978
HALVORSEN T. 1946
HAMILTON P.J. 2003
HAMMOND R.L 1967
HAMMOND M.R 1991
HAMMOND E. 1995
HAMPSHIRE R. 2003
HANCOCK P.R 1998
HANDEL V. 2004
HANDLIN D A 2004
HANDS D.J 1985
HANKIN P. 1967
HANLEY D. 1997
HANLEY P. 1997
HANNAN S.A. 2003
HARDMAN C. 2005
HARDY OBE J.G 1971
HAREMZA G. 1992
HARGREAVES P 2000
HARPER R. 1989
HARRIGAN D. 1998
HARRIS J.R 1970
HARRIS J. 1994
HARRIS P. 1995
HARRIS R.A. 1999
HARRIS C.T 2004
HARRISON J.S 1955
HARRISON J.R 1984
HARRISON E.J 1994
HARRISON A 2001
HARRISON R.W. 2001
HARRISON G. 2006
HART A.B 1980
HART D L 2001
HASEMER O.L 1974
HASTIE J. 1996
HATCH A.R 1976
HATTON H.R 1981
HAWCROFT P. 2001
HAWCROFT C. 2002
HAWKINS A. 2002
HAWLEY D. 1994
HAWTHORN A. 2002
HAWTHORN R 2002
HAWTHORN H. 2006
HAYES-HEARSE R. 1997
HAYNES S.W. 2004
HAYWARD M 2001

HAZELTON R.J 1974
HEALY D.M. 1995
HEARDER A.M 1976
HEARNE J.A 2004
HEARSE J.B 1997
HEARSE P.B. 1997
HEATHCOTE M 2001
HEHIR V. 1999
HEILIGERS S.J. 1994
HEILIGERS L.G. 2003
HEILIGERS S.L. 2003
HEILIGERS T.F. 2003
HEININGER R.W 1991
HEMERY JL 2001
HEMMING J.M. 2003
HEMPEL S. 1997
HENDERSON A.G. 1994
HENDERSON R.M. 1999
HENDERSON B.R. 2006
HENDREY P 2000
HENNESSY P 2000
HENRICKS P.J 1987
HENRY D.G. 2002
HENRY O 2002
HENRY R 2002
HENRY S 2002
HENRY J 2004
HERCUS AV 2001
HERDA C. 1997
HERDA J. 2002
HERLIHY D. 1970
HERPS J.P 1997
HERTZ L. 1965
HESSE M.J 1968
HESSION G. 2003
HEUCHMER G. 1984
HEWINS A.M. 2005
HEWSON J.R. 2005
HIATT M. 2005
HICKMAN R.J 1993
HICKS W.J 2004
HILL P.M 1961
HILL G.G 1989
HILL R M 2001
HILLEARD D. 1995
HINDMARSH JM 2003
HINDS G. 2002
HING R. 2005
HIRST A.R. 1996
HIRST G. 1998
HIRST C. 2002
HOARE K.G. 2000
HOCKING J. 2000
HOCKINGS I. 2003
HODDER J.G. 1999
HODGESON S.J 1998
HODGKINSON D.J 1993
HODGKINSON L.V. 1999
HODGMAN E. 2005
HODGSON M 2001
HODGSON M.K. 2005
HODGSON-ARMSTRONG S.N. 2003
HOEY J.J 1992
HOGG D.R. 1994
HOLBROOK G.B. 2002
HOLE G.R 2003
HOLLES F.D 1994
HOLLES D.M.A. 2001
HOLLEY I.L 1998
HOLLEY J. 2002
HOLLINGSWORTH M. 1989
HOLLIS P.R 2005
HOLM P. 2005
HOLMBERG R.G. 2005
HOLSTEIN R. 1997
HOLT G.L 1985
HOLT A.M 1996
HOOKE D.J 1989
HOOKE C.M. 2002
HOOKE J.E. 2002
HOOKE S.A. 2002
HOPKINSON M.M 1992
HORNE K. 1992
HORNE J. 2005
HORNIDGE A.G 2004

HOUGH T. 1997
HOUSE H. 1963
HOWARD H.J. 1992
HOWARD J.H 1994
HOWARD L.J 1994
HOWARD R 2003
HOWARTH V. 2005
HOWE G. 1997
HOWES P.S 1966
HOWES S.A. 2003
HOWISON K. 1977
HOWSE W. 2005
HOWSE J. 2005
HUBAN C. 1998
HUBER D 1995
HUDSON B.C 1974
HUDSON S.G 1993
HUGHES L.A. 1997
HUGHES K.S 1998
HUGHES B. 2003
HULFORD P 1996
HULL P.R. 1994
HUNT R.W 1993
HUNT S.A. 1994
HUNT B. 1996
HUNT G.E. 2002
HUNT J. 2004
HUNTER A. 1987
HUNTER B.C 1989
HUSE T. 1991
HUTCHESON R 2000
HUTSON J.R 1989
HUXLEY J. 1994
HUXLEY K. 2001
HYDE E.A.J. 2001
HYETT R.A. 2002
HYLAND P. 1999
HYND D.J. 2001
IACONO C. 1965
IKIN P.A 1988
ILLY T. 1972
INCHBOLD C 2001
INCHBOLD E. 2001
INCHBOLD P. 2001
INCHBOLD P.J. 2001
IND J.D. 1979
INGATE G.W 1949
INGVALL L.S. 1997
IPKENDANZ A.K 1993
IPKENDANZ D. 1993
IRELAND W. 1998
ISHERWOOD J. 2005
ISLES D.J 1955
ISLES A.V. 1976
IVANEZA M. 1998
JACKMAN K.L 1990
JACKSON B.G 1965
JACKSON M. 1992
JACKSON A.D. 1997
JACKSON D S 2001
JACKSON A 2003
JACKSON R.M. 2005
JACKSON G.E. 2005
JACKSON M.A.T 2005
JACOB S 2000
JACOB P.M. 2003
JACOBS K. 1986
JACOBS N.C 1991
JACOBS K.E. 2005
JACOBS L.M. 2005
JACOBSEN K.A 1988
JACOBSSON S. 1991
JAGGAR K.A 1978
JAMES B. 1972
JAMES M.R 1992
JAMES C.M 1995
JAMES SE 2001
JAMIESON G. 1987
JAMIESON J. 2002
JARMAN S.A. 1994
JARRETT J. 1999
JARRETT J. 1999
JARRETT J. 1999
JARRETT T. 1999

JARVIN S.V 1981
JARVIN S 2003
JEFFREY B.R. 2003
JEFFREY J.E. 2005
JEFREY M.J. 1999
JELLINS JC 2001
JELLINS LE 2001
JENKINS B 2000
JENKINS A.G 2005
JENKINSON P.L 1988
JENSEN I. 2005
JENSEN M. 2005
JERVIS P. 2002
JOEL J. 1982
JOHNS P.S 1986
JOHNSON P.J. 1973
JOHNSON P.W 1985
JOHNSON B.S. 1999
JOHNSON A 2002
JOHNSON T.P. 2002
JOHNSON L. 2003
JOHNSTON F.M 1978
JOHNSTON G.W 1982
JOHNSTON T.G 1988
JOHNSTON R.M 1993
JOHNSTON T. 1997
JOHNSTON N.T. 1999
JOHNSTON P.D. 2002
JOHNSTON A.I. 2003
JOHNSTON V. 2005
JOHNSTONE T.E 1984
JOLLIE T. 2000
JONES N. 1979
JONES J.P 1995
JONES C.R 1997
JONES D.A. 1999
JONES I.M. 2001
JONES P.E 2004
JORDAN D.W. 2003
JOSEPH P. 1998
JOSEPHSON F.E. 1998
JOSEPHSON J 1998
JOSLING C.M 1994
JOUBERT P. 1973
JOWELL A.R. 2005
JOYCE T. 1995
JOYCE A 2003
JUG S 2004
KAHLBETZER J.D. 1967
KAHLBETZER M.N. 1999
KARP M.J 1991
KARPIN J. 2003
KATER W.H. 2002
KAUFMAN H.T 1956
KAUFMAN G.S 1967
KAWALLA T A 2001
KEANE S.R 1990
KEARNAN A.J. 2006
KEARNEY M. 2003
KEARNS S. 2004
KEELTY J. 1965
KEELTY M.A 1994
KEEP L.F 1977
KELLETT K.L 1984
KELLETT B.D 1993
KELLETT V.A. 1999
KELLETT AM D.B 1970
KELLY F.C 1985
KELLY B. 1994
KELLY T. 1996
KELLY M P 2001
KELSO R.W 1996
KEMENY G. 1999
KENCH A.C.R 2004
KENDALL A.B. 2003
KENNEALLY A 2003
KENNEDY D.T 1984
KENNEDY J 2000
KEON G.F 1968
KERDIJK F. 1998
KERNAGAN L.K 2004
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KERR W.N 1976
KERR S. 1999
KERRY P.J. 2001
KESBY G 2001
KESBY G.F. 2001
KESBY H 2001
KESBY R 2001
KESBY S 2001
KESTERS K.P. 1994
KIDSON S.P. 2004
KIDSON D. 2004
KIERNAN I.B 1969
KINCAID C.J. 1994
KING B.R 1974
KING D.S 1974
KING P. 1983
KING G.L 1985
KING J 1998
KING M. 1999
KING J A 2003
KING J.A. 2003
KINGS J.A. 1997
KINGSMILL N 1998
KIRBY A.R 1994
KIRBY J.R. 1994
KIRBY A 2001
KIRBY C 2001
KIRBY M 2003
KIRK B. 1996
KIRK H. 1996
KIRK S.A. 1996
KIRKJIAN J.C 1979
KIRKJIAN A.J 1980
KIRKPATRICK W.R. 1999
KLAAS J. 1999
KLEE L 2002
KLINE P.W 1996
KLINE S.P 1998
KLINE C.L. 1999
KNIGHT V.M. 2005
KNOX C 2001
KOMORI K. 1994
KOMORI S. 1994
KONAKCI K.O. 1999
KONRADS J. 1997
KOPCHO M.P 1983
KOPPE B 2002
KOTZIAS P.J. 2003
KOURTIS C. 2006
KOVANIS M. 2005
KRAWCHUK D.M 1991
KUCZYNSKI M.J 1991
KURTS S.R 1987
KURTS A. 1991
KUSZNIER S. 1985
KUYPERS R.J 1998
LAANMAA G J 2004
LAKER G.J. 1997
LALLENSACK M. 1998
LAM J 2001
LAM D. 2004
LAMB H 2002
LAMB J 2002
LAMB J.W. 2002
LAMB S.J. 2002
LAMB C.J. 2002
LAMONT M.L. 1998
LANDIS B.A 1967
LANE M. 1993
LANE D.A. 2002
LANE A. 2005
LANGFORD M.C. 2002
LANGFORD K.J 2004
LANGMAN S 2000
LARKINS W.K 1987
LARSON J.L 1994
LASKY M. 1982
LATIMER C 2003
LATIMER A.W. 2005
LAU S. 1994
LAU L. 2004

LAUGHTON T J 1998
LAURANCE A.O. P 2000
LAVALOU E 2002
LAVERS S. 1998
LAVERS S. 1998
LAVERS R. 1999
LAVIS G.R 1985
LAVIS P.S 1994
LAVIS A.G. 1995
LAW R. 2005
LAWLER A.K. 1997
LAWLER H.A. 1999
LAWRANCE B.J. 1996
LAWRANCE J.H. 2005
LAWSON D.A 1964
LAWSON S.E. 1995
LAWSON T.W. 2002
LAWTON T. 1997
LE GRAS K.M 2004
LEE A.G 1963
LEE J.M 1979
LEE L. 2003
LEE W.W. 2005
LEECH M.J. 2005
LEEMING A.L. 1999
LEES A. 2002
LEE-WARNER J. 1995
LEGGE F. 2002
LEONARD S. 2000
LESLIE L 2000
LESLIE S.E. 2002
L’ESTRANGE A. 1997
LEVINSON P. 1995
LEWIN R. 2000
LEWIN W. 2005
LEWIN E. 2005
LEWIS N.H 1980
LEWIS M.D 1992
LEWIS P.A. 1999
LEWIS-BEARMAN G. 1984
LEY J.A 1985
LIDDY A 2002
LIGHEZZOLO D. 1985
LIIVRAND C. 1999
LINACRE G.J 1983
LINACRE J 2002
LINACRE R 2002
LINDSAY H. 1962
LIPSCOMBE M. 1995
LISTER M 2001
LITTLE C.G. 2006
LITTLEY F.D 1985
LIVERMORE D.N. 2005
LIVINGSTONE D. 1995
LIVINGSTONE E A 2004
LOANEY M. 1999
LOHBERG H.B 1987
LONGHEON D. 1999
LORIMER C. 1998
LOVERING D.H. 2001
LOVETT H. 1994
LOWDEN A.J. 2003
LOWE D.B 1992
LOWRY M. 2005
LUCAS R. 1999
LUKAS A.J 1973
LUKAS D.J. 2005
LUKAS J.P. 2005
LUKE P. 1944
LULHAM A. 1999
LYGO A 2000
LYKIARDOPULO N F 2001
LYNCH P 2003
LYNCH-GARDNER M. 1985
LYON A. 2006
LYONS D. 2003
LYSAGHT D. 1999
MacDONALD P.D 1984
MACDONALD R.A. 1998
MACDOUGALL S 1999
MacELBING I.J 1977

MACHIN A 2001
MACKIE A.N 1984
MacMAHON E. 1994
MacMAHON P.T 1994
MacMAHON T.P 1994
MacMAHON M. 1997
MacMAHON V.F 1998
MACNAMARA T C 2001
MACONOCHIE J.M. 1995
MACPHERSON D. 1998
MACPHERSON C. 2002
MacRAE D.R 1964
MACRAE S.A 1995
MacSWEEN P. 1999
MADDEN P.M 1978
MADDEN T.P. 2000
MADDEN J.P. 2000
MAGEE P.M 1998
MAGUIRE G. 2004
MAHOMED D 2003
MAHONY G. 1976
MAHONY C.G 1984
MAHONY P.G 1998
MAINSBRIDGE I.J. 1996
MAINSBRIDGE J.J 1996
MAITLAND N 2003
MAITZ K. 1999
MAITZ P 2000
MAIZELS S.J. 1994
MAJOR C.S 1998
MALHOTRA J C 1998
MALLETT V.J 1994
MALOUF C. 1999
MANLEY I.R 1986
MANNING R.G 2004
MANNING K.A. 2005
MANNING M.H. 2005
MANNS C. 1995
MANSON J.M 1983
MANUEL G. 1994
MARBLE D. 2003
MARGO R.F. 1999
MARINA S. 1984
MARKELL D J 2001
MARKOS J.J 1997
MARKOS J 2001
MARKS F 2003
MARLER N 2002
MARR R. 1982
MARR A.R. 1998
MARR C. 1999
MARSHALL G.D 1982
MARSHALL A.B. 1983
MARSHALL J 2000
MARSHALL D.F. 2003
MARSHALL D.M 2004
MARTIN H 1999
MARTYN S A 2001
MARWOOD L. 1990
MASON P.E. 1998
MASON I. 1998
MASON D.C.M. 2001
MASON G.C. 2004
MATHER A. 1994
MATHEWS P.W 1967
MATHEWS S.P 1993
MATHLIN D.H 1980
MATISZIK K.F. 1999
MATTHEWS F.L 1991
MAUGHAN G.M 1992
MAUNSELL B.E. 2004
MAURY J.A 1990
MAXWELL D.C 1987
MAY J.M 1975
MAY L.B 1984
MAY J. 1992
MAY A.T. 1997
MAY S. 1999
MAY S.T.F 1999
MAYO J 2003
McADAM P. 1992

McAULEY R.A 1958
MCAULIFFE J.P. 1999
McAULIFFE I. 2004
McBURNIE S.A 1991
McCARRON M.F 2003
McCARRON D 2004
McCARTHY E.C 1985
McCARTHY N.T 1989
McCARTHY W. 1999
McCARTHY M 2001
McCLEAN L. 1967
McCLEAN D.J 1986
McClean L. 1999
McCLELLAND P 2003
McCOMB S.A 2005
McCONCHIE R.E 1997
McCONCHIE R 2001
McCONVILLE D.J. 1997
McCONVILLE M. L. 1999
McCOOK W.A 1982
McCORMICK T.A 1989
McCRORY A 2003
McCRORY J. 2004
McDONALD F.A 1986
McDONALD C.X 1991
McDONALD D.L 1996
McDONALD C.S. 2001
McDONALD J.D. 2001
MCDONALD D.N. 2005
MCDOWALL L. 1998
McDOWALL G 2001
McDOWELL P.J. 1999
McELLIGOTT M. 1990
McELROY C 2001
McELROY J.H. 2001
McEWAN S.W 1998
McEWEN R. 1999
MCEWEN B. 1999
MCEWEN D.J. 1999
McFARLANE B.W 1985
McGEE P 2003
McGEOUGH P 1999
McGOWAN G. 1997
McGOWAN N. 1997
McGOWAN S. 1997
McGRATH D.M. 2000
McGRATH M.J 2004
McGRATH P.J 2004
MCGRATH A. 2005
McGRODER G.J 1986
McIVOR A W 2001
MCKAY D 2000
McKENDRICK R.G 2004
MCKENNA P. 2005
McKENZIE P 2002
McKENZIE K 2002
McKENZIE K. 2006
McKEOWN S 2003
McKIM J. 1971
McKINNON V 2003
MCKOWEN S. 2002
McLAREN J.J 1955
McLAREN J. 1962
McLAUGHLIN L 2001
McLELAND K.L. 1999
McLEOD G. 1993
McLOUGHLIN R.J 1997
MCMAHON R 2003
McMILLAN C. 1997
McMILLAN E.J.W. 1997
McNICOLL D.D. 2002
McNICOLL M.P. 2002
MCNULTY S. 1998
MCPHEE J. 1999
McPHEE L. 1999
McSORLEY C.J 1998
MEAD J.S 2004
MEANI R.J 1994
MEARES C. 1997
MEDWIN F.E. 2001
MEEHAN C.S 1994
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MELICK A. 2003
MELLETT P.J. 2004
MELLOR P.C 1998
MELOSU A. 1996
MELOSU A. 1996
MELOSU S. 1996
MELVILLE J. 2000
MENDES K.P 2004
MENZIES A 2002
MEREDITH M.M. 2001
MERITY J.L 1992
MERLINO A 2002
MERLINO P 2002
MERLINO G. 2002
MESSENGER C.J 1979
MESSENGER J.C 1983
MESSENGER T. 1984
MESSENGER P.B 1984
MESSENGER K. 1985
MESSENGER A. 1999
MESSENGER K.L. 2002
MEYER L.K 1987
MEYER J. 1989
MICHAEL H. 1994
MICHALOWSKY M.S 1991
MICKLEBOROUGH D.E 1958
MILES G. 1982
MILES C. 1999
MILLER M. 1983
MILLER J.W 1988
MILLER C. 1998
MILLER K. 1998
MILLER A 2003
MILLS P.R 1967
MILLS M 2001
MILLS J.D. 2003
MINEHAN L.P 1985
MINOGUE M.P 1991
MINTER C.A 1991
MINTO S.G 1980
MIROW W.J 1974
MISCHE R.E 1964
MITCHELL J.P. 1997
MITCHELL L.D 1998
MITCHELL C 2002
MOATE J.L 1984
MOLONEY D. 1998
MOLONEY P. 1999
MOLONY P.J 1983
MONTANARO F. 2002
MONTGOMERIE D.S. 1994
MONTGOMERY K.W. 1994
MOONEY P. 1977
MOORE J.M 1977
MOORE R.C 1984
MOORE R.G 1994
MOORE M.S 1995
MOORE B.A. 2006
MOORHOUSE A.C 1998
MOORMAN T 2000
MOOY R.B. 1998
MOREY N.L 1992
MORGAN G K 2004
MORGAN R.L 2004
MORISSET D. 1983
MORLAND D 2004
MORRELL P.L 2004
MORRIS J.K 1970
MORRIS A.G 1973
MORRIS Y. 1993
MORRIS S.E. 1995
MORRIS J. L. 2002
MORRIS P.G. 2002
MORRISON J.R 1992
MORRISON O.A 2004
MORRISON M.D. 2005
MORRISON S.J. 2005
MORRISSEY J.B 1993
MORROW B.J 1998
MORSE A.W 1988
MORT G. 1998

MORTON R.L 1987
MOSEDALE P. 1995
MOSS K.S 1961
MOSS C.J. 2003
MOUFARRIGE M E 2004
MOUFARRIGE T.A.G 2004
MOUFARRIGE A. 2005
MOWTELL K.J 1979
MUIR R. 1985
MUIRHEAD S. 1997
MUIRSMITH J.M. 1999
MULA W.J. 2005
MULA R.J 2005
MULHERIN P.A 1993
MULHERIN C. 1998
MUNDLE R.G 1970
MUNNS B.J. 1995
MUNRO V.F 1994
MUNRO D.F. 2004
MURATORE A 1999
MURDOCH L.K 1997
MURDOCH R. 1998
MURDOCH SA 2001
MURNAGHAN A.W 1994
MURPHY A.B 1998
MURPHY J 2002
MURPHY V.O. 2003
MURRAY P. 1984
MURRAY I.G 1988
MURRAY S.M. 1997
MURRAY J.W 2004
MUSGROVE J.D 1957
MUSGROVE A. 1995
MYATT J W 2004
MYERS E.A. 1999
NAIL B.J 1989
NAIL B. 1993
NASH D.A 1993
NAVRATIL P.S 2004
NEATE P.M. 1994
NEAVES P. 1998
NELSON G.I 1980
NEWELL K.R 1994
NEWGROSH D.A. 1983
NEWHOUSE M. 1999
NEWTON N.R 1990
NEWTON GC 2001
NEWTON L 2001
NEWTON S 2002
NEWTON P.J. 2006
NICHOLLS J.M 1987
NICHOLSON K. 2005
NICKOLLS A.E 1987
NIEDERER L 2000
NOAKES J.W 1967
NOBBS E.P 1965
NOLDART R.J 1988
NORTH J.B. 1999
NORTHCOTE B R 2000
NORTHFIELD P.T. 1999
NURSEY T.R.G 2005
OATES K 2001
OATLEY R.I. 2005
OAYDA L. 1994
O’BRIEN P.A 1996
O’BRIEN R 2001
O’BRIEN C.J. 2005
O’BRIEN B. 2005
O’BRIEN G. 2005
O’BRIEN M. 2005
O’CALLAGHAN J.O. 2006
OCHIAI M. 1995
O’CONNELL J.D 1949
O’CONNELL P.M 1991
O’CONNELL PJ 2001
O’CONNOR R.G 1990
O’CONNOR C 2001
O’CONNOR S 2002
ODOUARD P. 2004
OELRICHS I.E 1988
OFFORD A.B 2004

OFFORD M. 2005
OGDEN J. 2004
O’GRADY K.J 1989
O’HALLORAN S. 1995
OLD S.E 1974
O’LEARY M 2003
O’LEARY C.L. 2003
O’LEARY C.M. 2003
O’LEARY F.B. 2003
OLIVER M.M 1986
OLIVER G.R 1998
OLLIFFE N.G 1998
O’LOUGHLIN P. 1986
O’LOUGHLIN S.M. 1999
O’MALLEY J. 1993
O’NEIL D.J 1965
O’NEIL J. 2002
O’NEILL G.J 1979
O’NEILL G. 1983
O’NEILL M. 1998
O’NEILL G 2003
O’ROURKE S 2001
OSBORNE P.J 1989
OSBORNE M.L 2004
O’SHEA K 2001
OSMOND B. 1997
OSMOND G. 1997
OSMOND M. 1997
OSMOND P. 1997
O’SULLIVAN B. 1996
O’SULLIVAN M. 1999
OTTO A.L. 2002
OWEN A.A. 1994
OWEN B. 1996
OWEN M.R 1998
OXENBOULD C 2004
OXLEY A.O 1967
OXLEY C.J 2004
OXLEY T.A. 2004
PAGE AC 2001
PALMER N.T 1991
PALMER CJ 2001
PARKER W. 2003
PARKER K. 2005
PARKER P. 2005
PARRY-OKEDEN C.R.U 1998
PARSHALL W. 1998
PARSHALL A.J 2004
PASSMORE M. 1995
PATEL M. 1999
PATERSON H 2002
PATON F. 1998
PATOS P. 2003
PAUL M.E 1977
PAUL N.J. 1999
PAYNE M. 1996
PAYNE H. 1996
PAYNE A.C 1998
PAYNE G.S. 2000
PEACH J J 2003
PEACH I.E. 2003
PEACH J.J. 2003
PEACH L.I. 2003
PEACOCK G.A 1973
PEARCE B.M. 2003
PEARSON D. 1985
PEARSON I.Y. 2000
PEATY J. 1999
PECKMAN L. 1989
PEEL R. 2004
PEGLER J. 1998
PELLEGRINI J. 1994
PELLEGRINI P. 2004
PELLY J. 1997
PENDER DB 2001
PENFOLD S.J 1989
PENFOLD A.M 1998
PENFOLD J. 1999
PENN G 2000
PENNEY R.J. 2005

PENTLAND C.J 1987
PENTY R. 1997
PENTY A. 1998
PERINI R 1995
PERINI C 2001
PERINI LJ 2001
PERINI M 2001
PERRY S.B 1962
PERRY T.N 1994
PESCUD D. 1996
PETLEY J. M. 1999
PETRIE A.H. 2005
PETRIE M.L. 2005
PETTICA A.D. 2005
PETZOLD A.O 1977
PHILLIPS P.S 1977
PHILLIPS M.D 1998
PHILLIPS V.M 1998
PHILLIPS F 2001
PICKERING AC 2001
PICKERING AM 2001
PIGGIN K. 2005
PIGGOT L.M 1997
PIGGOTT R.H. 1997
PIGGOTT S 2000
PIGGOTT G H 2001
PINTER M.D 1991
PISANI M 1999
PITCAIRN D.J 1991
PLATFORD CA 2002
PLATT-HEPWORTH I.G 2004
PLATT-HEPWORTH J. 2004
PLYMPTON A.J. 2003
POINTING A.C 1990
POINTON M.J 1992
POLLOCK J.G 1998
PORTEK I. 2005
PORTER S.I 1994
PORTER R.A. 1999
PORTER J.M. 1999
PORTER W.M. 1999
POTTER C.R. 1994
POULDEN S.C. 1999
POULDEN W. 1999
POULDEN IJ 2001
POULDEN WMC 2001
POULSON C. 2006
POWELL R.J 1998
POWELL T. 1999
POWELL J.C. 2005
PRATT L 2002
PRESS M.I. 1977
PREST R.L. 2001
PRICE N 2002
PRICHARD P. 1999
PRIOR M.A. 1999
PROOS G.J. 1996
PROOS H 2001
PROUD S. 2002
PRYER A. 1997
PRYER K.A. 1999
PRYKE M.A. 1995
PSALTIS B.C 1953
PSALTIS M.M 1963
PSALTIS E. 1987
PSALTIS A.W 1988
PSALTIS S.L 1994
PSALTIS S.P. 1995
PUDNEY K. 1999
PURCELL R.G 1988
PURVES S.P 1991
PURVES J. 1999
QUICK A.H. 1996
QUICK T.J. 2003
QUINN G.J 1997
QUINN M.J. 1997
QUINN P. 1999
QUINN B.F. 2005
RADEMAKER S. 1999
RAE R E 2001
RAFFERTY M.A 1998
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RAGGATT G.L 1991
RAHILLY R.S. 1997
RAINBOW J.P 1992
RAINSFORD T 2003
RAMSAY R.M 1989
RAMSAY P.J 1991
RAMSEY M.R. 2005
RANCE M. 2005
RANKIN B.J 1987
RAPHAEL G 2003
RASMUSSEN J. 1987
RATCLIFF A.E 1962
RATCLIFF L.P 1985
RATCLIFF L 2003
RATHGEB W. 1987
RATNER L.M 1989
RATTEN J.H 1978
RAWLINGS K.A 1994
RAYK C 2003
READ J.H 1966
READ D.P. 2005
REDMOND P.T. 1996
REEVES M. 1999
REID A. 1987
REID D.S 1989
REID R. 1998
REID P 2001
REID N 2002
REID C 2003
REYNOLDS C.W 1987
REYNOLDS S.M. 2004
RHODES T. R. 1999
RICE A. 1998
RICH A.F 1979
RICHARDS H 1999
RICHARDS P 2001
RICHARDSON B. 2003
RICHARDSON A.M. 2005
RICHMOND D.E 2004
RICHMOND M. 2004
RICHMOND Z. 2004
RICKARD L.J 1965
RICKETTS R. 1976
RIDDLE B.A. 2003
RIDULFO L.J.A. 2001
RIDULFO T.J. 2001
RIDULFO S. 2005
RIDULFO C. 2005
RIEGL B 1999
RIGG J. 1986
RILEY W.J 1971
RINGROSE J.A 1996
RITCHIE M.D 1974
RITCHIE E. 1998
RITCHIE A. 1998
RITCHIE AA 2002
RITCHIE J.J. 2003
RITCHIE M.B 2004
ROACH S.R. 2000
ROBERTS J.T 1980
ROBERTS R.J 1983
ROBERTS N.S 1994
ROBERTS C.I. 1995
ROBERTS G.W. 1996
ROBERTS S.H. 1998
ROBERTS E. 1999
ROBERTSON R 2000
ROBINSON R. 1986
ROBINSON M.J 1993
ROBINSON B.M. 1999
ROBINSON S. 1999
ROBINSON EA 2001
ROBSON J.M. 2003
ROCKELL C. 2002
RODAN J. 1997
RODGER J. 1999
RODGERS F.S 1958
RODGERS P. 1991
ROE M 1999
ROGERS J.P 1998
ROGERS B.C. 1998
ROGERS J.R. 2003

ROOKE C.A 2004
ROOKLYN W 2006
RORKE C. 1999
ROSS R.W 1970
ROSS I.W 1985
ROSS E.V 1994
ROSS G.A. 1997
ROSS C.G. 1998
ROSS M 2000
ROSS P.W. 2002
ROSS D.R. 2002
ROSS J. 2003
ROTH J.S 1981
ROTHSCHILD M. 1998
ROTHSCHILD L.S. 2004
ROTHWELL G.W 1997
ROUMANUS R 2002
ROURKE H.C 1981
ROUVRAY G.J 1971
ROWELL E.S 2003
ROWLAND N.M. 1996
ROWLANDS J. 2003
ROWLEY B.S 1990
ROWLEY P 2001
ROWNTREE G. 1998
ROWORTH J.C 1988
ROXBURGH K.C 1971
ROYLANCE L.J 1998
ROZENAUERS P.M. 2002
RUMING D.M 1994
RUNOW S. 1987
RUSSELL S.B. 1997
RUTHERFORD J. 1995
RYAN B.C 1976
RYAN N.C 1978
RYAN F.I 1997
RYAN A 2001
RYAN T.G 2003
RYAN M. 2003
RYAN W 2004
RYAN M.L 2005
RYCKMANS L. 2004
RYCKMANS M. 2004
RYDGE L.M 1966
RYDGE AM OBE N.B 1964
RYRIE S 2002
SABEY M.D. 2000
SABEY S.Y. 2006
SACKELARIOU R.P 1994
SALMON M.D. 2005
SALMON L.B. 2005
SALMON M.M. 2005
SALMON A.M. 2006
SANCHEZ M. 1991
SANDISON J.C 1963
SANTIFORT W.J 1985
SATCHELL D 2000
SAUNDERS M.H. 2004
SAUNDERS H F 2004
SAUNDERS-WIGGINSG. 2006
SAVA M.C. 2003
SAVAGE H.A 1991
SAVAGE P.A. 1999
SAVAGE G. 2000
SAVAGE J. 2000
SAVAGE J. 2000
SAVAGE L. 2000
SAYWELL A. 2005
SCALES J.P 1998
SCANLAN C.L 1994
SCANLAN L. 1997
SCHAFFNER G. 1994
SCHEPIS A. 1999
SCHILLER A.M. 1995
SCHILLING B.R. 2002
SCHLEIBS R.B 2005
SCHMID B.C 1986
SCHMIDT G 2003
SCHULTE P. 2003
SCHULTE P.D. 2003
SCHWAMBERG R 2001
SCHWARZ P 2001

SCOTT H.S 1965
SCOTT J.R 1994
SCOTT M. 1994
SCOTT CH 2001
SCOTT P. 2005
SCRIVENOR R.J 1976
SCRIVENOR P.J 1989
SCRIVENOR A.J. 2005
SCULLY-POWER P. 1998
SEARLE A.J. 2006
SEARY P.J 1998
SEGAERT R.P 1975
SEGAERT S. F. 2003
SEILER K.D 1998
SELBY M.J. 2002
SEMPLE M. 2006
SEWELL P A 2001
SHAFFRAN C.J 1965
SHANNON D.R. 2001
SHAPIRO R. 2006
SHEARER J 2002
SHEARER C. 2006
SHEEHY B.T 1992
SHEILES D. 1987
SHELDON R S 2001
SHELLEY L. J. 1999
SHEPHERD W.D. 2001
SHEPPARD K.D 1990
SHEPPARD J. 1998
SHERIDAN J.Y 1979
SHERIDAN S. 2000
SHERIDAN T 2000
SHERMAN W.G. 1994
SHIPWAY P. 1972
SHIPWAY J.B. 1994
SHIRBIN J.J. 1996
SHIRES P. 2005
SHMITH D.H 1965
SHORT J. 1989
SHORT A. 1990
SHORT I. 1995
SHUTES L. 1995
SICKINGHE D.G 2004
SILVA M 1999
SILVESTER W. 2004
SIMMER G.E 1987
SIMMONDS J.E. 2002
SIMMONS J.S 2004
SIMMONS S.L 2004
SIMON R.J 1998
SIMON G 2003
SIMPSON K.M 1994
SIMPSON T. 1998
SIMS A 2000
SINDLER M 1997
SINGER J.M. 1999
SINGER J.M. 2006
SINGLETON T. 1996
SIRETT G. 1994
SKELLET R. 1994
SKELLET S. 2005
SKELLET L. 2006
SKILLEN D. 1996
SKINNER R R 2001
SKIRVING P.C. 2002
SKOL-WIGGINS R. 2006
SLESSAR D.W 2004
SLINN M J 1995
SLOTBOOM D. 1995
SMART B. 1999
SMART S.G. 1999
SMART T. 1999
SMIDLIN R.J 1986
SMITH W.C 1959
SMITH R.A 1979
SMITH R.J 1989
SMITH G.H 1991
SMITH J.N 1993
SMITH L 1995
SMITH J.B. 1996
SMITH A. 1997
SMITH B.P. 1997

SMITH J. 1998
SMITH D. 1999
SMITH J.F. 2000
SMITH S.A. 2001
SMITH J.F. 2002
SMITH A.R. 2003
SMITH N P 2003
SMITH E 2004
SMITH E.T. 2004
SMITH N.C. 2004
SMITH P 2004
SMITH G. 2005
SMITH S. 2005
SMITH A.C. 2005
SMITH G.M. 2006
SMYTH G. 2003
SNEESBY C.A 2005
SNEESBY E.J 2005
SNEESBY M.J 2005
SNOW G.R 1971
SNOW M.J 1994
SNOW R.S 1994
SNOW R.F. 1995
SNOW S. 1999
SNOW F.R 2004
SOLE K. 1978
SOLLY V.L 1970
SOLOMON E. 1998
SOMERTON D. 1994
SOMERTON R.M. 1994
SOMMER H. 1986
SORENSEN P C 2003
SOUTER M.M. 2001
SOUTHAM S.E. 2002
SPEECHLEY G. 2005
SPELLER H.L. 2006
SPELLER-KEARNAN A.R. 2006
SPELLER-KEARNAN L.S. 2006
SPENCE M.A. 2001
SPENCER J. 1983
SPENCER B. 1991
SPENCER D.R. 2001
SPIES M.B. 1995
SPIRA P. 2004
SPITHILL M.P 2004
SPROULE B.C 1981
SPURGEON C.H 1968
SRIBER C.J 1988
STACKPOOL J.N 1988
STACKPOOL M.J 1991
STANLEY B.A 1998
STANTON A. 1975
STANYON C.N 1977
STAPLETON L 2001
STECHMANN K.F 1993
STEEL R.W 1985
STEEL D.G. 1997
STENING G. 1998
STENING H 2003
STENT G. 1998
STEPHENS B.E 1985
STEPHENSON S.R 1998
STEPHENSON M.I. 1999
STERGOULIS M.A. 2003
STEVENS R.L 1972
STEVENS K.J. 1999
STEVENS J. 2004
STEVENSON S.O 1982
STEVENSON K. 1986
STEVENSON S.L. 2003
STEVNS A.S 1993
STEWART R.J 1978
STEWART P.W 1994
STEWART G.B 1998
STEWART S. 1998
STEWART G.J. 2001
STEWART S.M. 2001
STEWART A.B.M. 2002
STEWART A. 2003
STICOVICH J.F 1998
STICPEWICH D.J 1963
STIRLING R.S. 1999
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Members List – Continued

STITZ D A 2003
STODART C 2001
STOECKEL A.B 1991
STOECKEL H.L 1995
STOECKEL M. 1995
STONE G. 1993
STONE R.C. 1998
STORCH D.J 1998
STOREY J.J 1989
STOTT N. 1998
STRACHAN A. 1977
STRACHAN V.M 1998
STRAMAN R 2003
STRANGER J.M 1993
STREETON W 1999
STRONACH P.N 1984
STRONG J.A. 2004
STRONG J 2004
STRUTT J.W 1981
STUART A. 2005
STUCKEY J.R.M. 2002
STUDLEY J.W. 1995
STURROCK D.G 1981
STURROCK J. 1985
SULSTERS A. 1997
SUTTON A. 1998
SUTTON M.E. 2006
SWAINSTON S.J 1997
SWAN G.R. 1996
SWANSON B.J 1965
SWEENEY S. 1994
SWEENEY J 2003
SWEETAPPLE A.M 1981
SYRROS H. 1991
TABONE M. 1998
TALINTYRE D.I 1997
TARIMO PJ 2001
TAYLOR J.M 1954
TAYLOR A.E 1989
TAYLOR L. 1997
TAYLOR P.A 1997
TAYLOR C. 1998
TAYLOR P.G.R 1999
TAYLOR K.M. 1999
TAYLOR M.K. 2000
TAYLOR P 2000
TAYLOR B.E. 2005
TEJADA J. 2005
TELFORD D.M. 1995
TELFORD F. 1998
TERREY N.R.K. 1983
THACKRAY M.A 2005
THACKRAY D. 2006
THEODORE J. 1999
THOMAS F.M 1964
THOMAS W.O 1979
THOMAS E. 1995
THOMAS P. 1997
THOMAS A 2001
THOMAS H 2001
THOMAS M C 2001
THOMAS R.W. 2002
THOMAS D.R 2004
THOMAS S.W. 2004
THOMAS T.J. 2006
THOMPSON P 1982
THOMPSON G.B 1994
THOMPSON A.M 2002
THOMPSON A. 2004
THOMPSON K. 2005
THOMPSON J. 2006
THOMSON L.R 1985
THOMSON R.E. 1999
THORBURN L.C 2004
THORP S. 1999
THORP E. 2004
TIGHE T. 2005
TIGLIO F. 2004
TILLEY A 2001
TIMMS A 2001
TISDALE N.J 2005
TISHER C. 2005
TODNER D.J 1994
TODNER A. 1998
TODNER S. 1998
TOLA C. 1994
TOLLIS G.D. 1995

TOMASZUK P. 1995
TOOHER E.J. 1997
TOOHER-BURRELL T 2003
TOOTH R.M 1984
TOTTERDELL G.F 2004
TOTTERDELL M.E. 2005
TOWNSON W. 1997
TRAVIA M. 1999
TREHARNE H. 1971
TRELEAVEN I.G 1987
TRELEAVEN A.M. 1994
TRELEAVEN I.A. 1994
TRELEAVEN J.A. 1994
TREMBATH R. 1994
TREMBATH S. 1994
TRENERRY J.B 1980
TRENTHAM K. 2005
TRESIDDER R.W 1987
TROON G.H. 2005
TROTTER R.B 1998
TROUP C.A 1978
TROUP P.J. 1995
TRUMAN B.F. 2002
TRUSTY M J 2003
TSUKAHARA S. 1995
TUCKER M R 2003
TUCKEY K.S 1995
TUISK U.U 1985
TUISK G.K 1986
TUISK R. 2004
TUITE L. 2004
TUITE B.T. 2005
TURNER R.E 1973
TURNER S.J 1991
TURNER S 2002
TWIBILL A.K 1991
TYREE A.W 1964
ULLRICH S. 1999
ULM D.J. 1994
UMEMOTO H. 1991
URRY D.C. 2000
VAARZON MOREL T.M 1976
VALE J.A 1984
VAN DER GRIEND M. 1990
VAN EWIJK D.A 1984
VAN GELDER J.P 1979
VAN HEYST A.M. 1994
VAN KRETSCHMAR J.C.H 1983
VAN KRETSCHMAR M. 1998
VANDENBERG Y. 2000
VANDERWILT D.R. 1999
VAN’T HOF B. 1995
VARCOE J. 2000
VAUGHAN G.M. 2003
VAVRICA I. 1999
VEINIMAE S. 2004
VENABLES S. J. 1999
VERSI P. 1995
VERSI C. 1998
VERSI C. 1998
VERSI G. 1998
VIDOR  AM E. 1975
VILLATA L. 2006
VINCENT L F 2002
VINCENT C.J. 2002
VINE T.J. 2005
VIQUERAT A.D. 1998
VOLCKMAR F. 2003
VOORDERHAKE D. 1993
VOORDERHAKE D.P 1997
VOORDERHAKE R. 1997
WADE D.B.G 1994
WADE K. 2002
WAGER P.J. 2001
WAINWRIGHT O. 1989
WAITSMAN A. 2002
WAITSMAN D. 2002
WALDTHAUSEN G. 1990
WALKER M.M. 1995
WALKER L. 1997
WALKER E.J. 2002
WALKER C.A. 2003
WALKER F.J. 2005
WALKER A.D. 2005
WALKER S.M. 2006
WALKER SMITH D.F 1978
WALL S.H. 1997

WALL P.A. 1999
WALLER D. 2005
WALLIS-BROWN M. E. 2005
WALSH V.M. 1965
WALSH P.J. 1976
WALSH S.E 1998
WALSH E. 2000
WALSH M. 2000
WALSH P.J. 2005
WALTON J.S. 1970
WALTON J. 1995
WAMBEEK G. 2004
WARD J. 2005
WARDLEY E.S. 1999
WARN J. 1956
WARN P. 1956
WARNER M.R. 2004
WARNER M. 2005
WARRICK C. 2005
WASHINGTON T. 2003
WASSELL J.R. 1994
WATERS J. H. 2001
WATERS M. 2001
WATERS M. 2002
WATKINS W.A. 1998
WATSON B. 1995
WATSON A. 1996
WATSON G. 2001
WAWN J.S.F 2005
WEATHERALL V.M 2004
WEBB W.P. 1984
WEBB A.L 1989
WEBB R.A. 1992
WEBB K. 2005
WEBER M. 1999
WEDDERBURN P.J 1998
WEDDERBURN F.M. 2003
WEDDERBURN S.W. 2003
WEDDERBURN W.W. 2003
WEGG G.H. 1994
WEILEY J.F. 1996
WEIR R.A. 1996
WEIR A.B. 2000
WEIR J.L.C 2000
WEIR S. 2002
WEIR S.M. 2005
WEISE G. 1997
WELSH B.L. 2003
WENHAM A.T 1981
WEST R.J.S 1984
WEST P. 2002
WEST N J S 2003
WHARINGTON G. 1998
WHATMORE J.A. 2006
WHEELHOUSE J.S. 2000
WHISTON J.M.G. 1998
WHISTON N.A. 1998
WHITAKER N. 2004
WHITBOURN M.G. 1998
WHITBY M.J. 2001
WHITE M.S. 1995
WHITE B. 1999
WHITE G. 2001
WHITE C.D. 2004
WHITE N.P. 2005
WHITFELD M. 2001
WHITFIELD P. 1992
WHITFIELD T. 1994
WHITFIELD C.E. 1999
WHITFORD P R 2001
WHITINGTON R 2001
WHITTAKER L R 2002
WHITWORTH A. 1995
WHYTE D.J. 1999
WIESENER A. 1996
WIGGINS B. 2006
WIGGINS G. 2006
WILCOX L. 2000
WILCOX R. 2000
WILCOX P.L. 2003
WILD W.J 2005
WILDE P. 1994
WILDE D.R.A. 2001
WILDE S.P. 2001
WILKENS W.H. 2001
WILKINSON M 2001

WILKINSON P. 2003
WILL S.P 1977
WILLIAMS R.T 1958
WILLIAMS M.B. 1988
WILLIAMS P.E. 1990
WILLIAMS C.R. 1994
WILLIAMS J.S. 1994
WILLIAMS R. 1995
WILLIAMS L.F. 1998
WILLIAMS O.F. 1998
WILLIAMS K.C. 2002
WILLIAMS R.P. 2002
WILLIAMS A.J. 2003
WILLIAMS J. 2004
WILLIAMSON H.F.A. 2000
WILLIAMSON S.A. 2006
WILLIAMSON-NOBLE J.C. 2002
WILLMOT A. S. 2003
WILLS R.M. 1986
WILSON F. 1982
WILSON C.J. 1989
WILSON L. 1990
WILSON D. 1992
WILSON D.J. 1993
WILSON D.L. 1993
WILSON L.R. 1994
WILSON D.C.E. 1995
WILSON I.R. 1995
WILSON I. 1997
WILTON R.N. 1996
WINKLER P.A. 1973
WINKLER M. 1996
WINKLER R. 1996
WINKLER S. 2000
WINNING J.W. 1984
WINNING R.H. 1984
WINNING J R. 1995
WINNING J.M. 1995
WINNING K.J. 1995
WINSTANLY D.M. 2005
WINSTANLY L.M. 2005
WINTLE P. 2004
WISE T.J. 1980
WISE C. 1993
WISE E. C. 2002
WITTENOOM R.J. 1999
WITTEY N.G. 2002
WOLFENSBERGER M.L. 1986
WOLFENSBERGER U. 1998
WOLFF P. 2004
WOO D. 1994
WOOD J.B 1984
WOOD C.W.S. 1987
WOOD G.T. 2003
WOOD A.J. 2004
WOODRUFF J.P. 1998
WOODS M.A. 1981
WOODS C.J. 2003
WOODS G. 2003
WOODS J. 2005
WOODWARD L.M. 2005
WOTTON M.G 2004
WRAGBY R.K. 1996
WRAGBY A. 2001
WRIGHT W.H. 1975
WYATT R.A. 2003
WYNN J.W. 1983
WYNN P. 1999
WYNTER L. 2003
WYNYARD S. 1999
YAFFA M.D. 1999
YANEZ M. 1998
YEM D. 1981
YORK J. 1952
YORK S. 1986
YORK OAM M. 1945
YOUMANS R.A 2003
YOUNG K. 1992
YOUNG J. 1998
YOUNG D.M. 1999
ZAWARINI V. 2004
ZEHNDER P.M. 1995
ZEMANEK M. 2003
ZEMANEK S. 1998
ZIESCHANG T. 2004
ZUZZA P. 1998
ZYNER G. 2004
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CYCA Yacht Register

A99 AAPT SEAN LANGMAN OPEN 66

193 ABOUT TIME JULIAN FARREN-PRICE COOKSON 12

AUS 193 ADIOS III JOHN BAGSHAW INTL DRAGON

6107 ADRIA CHRISTOPHER GORMAN J44

GRE 55 AERA NICK LYKIARDOPULO KER 55

RQ 58 AFR MIDNIGHT RAMBLER ED PSALTIS BOB THOMAS FARR 40 OD

5148 AGENT 88 PETER & PAULINE REDMOND YOUNG 88

8080 AHOY DENISE VAN EWIJK JOHN MORRISSEY VAN der STADT 40

4970 AKELA STEVE SWEENEY AKELA SYNDICATE JUTSON

AKUBRA PATRICK WILDE

5949 ALCYONE JOHN B SMITH JEANNEAU

NZL 80 ALFA ROMEO NEVILLE CRICHTON REICHEL PUGH 30M

4660 ALIBI JOKES SYNDICATE JOHN STRUTT S111

407 ALLUSIVE JACK FINDLAY LYONS 47

5935 ALPHA CARINAE TREVOR JARRETT SYDNEY 36

5665 AMON RA NICHOLAS JONES FARR 1104

NOR 2 ANDREW SHORT MARINE ANDREW SHORT VOLVO 60

5106 ANNA ROBERT GILLIES/GEORGE NORTHERNER 28 
SIRRETT/ALAN STEVNS

1117 ANTARES RICHARD GRUBB CONTESSA

6589 ANTEATER BLUES PHIL HEARSE HANSE 461

500 ANTIPODES GREG NEWTON BENETEAU 47.7

AQUITANIA LEIGH MINEHAN MOTORCRUISER

6519 ARCHERON NEVILLE & JAQUELINE BROWN BENETEAU 393

7101 ARCHINA BILL FERRIS JOSEPH SKRZYNSKI KETCH

A 173 ARINDA MICHAEL WYNTER CARVEL SLOOP

3944 ARROW JUSTIN GRAHAM JS9000

9999 ASSASSIN ROBIN CRAWFORD IMS FARR 40

SYD 2 ATOMIC DENIS O’NEIL HARBOUR RACER

8150 ATTITUDE ROBERT HUNT OFFSHORE 350

AUDACIOUS JOE CHADWICK SWANSON

6091 AWAY AWAY PHILIP GOYMOUR HANSE 371

181 AZZURA MALCOLM EDWARDS GRAND SOLEIL 38

7350 B.Y.O. DAVID TURNER CAVALIER 350 SL

AUS 98 BAD GRACE CYRIL LATIMER J24

6467 BALTIC LADY NEIL BURLING HANSE 371

5080 BARNACLE BILL JOHN PELLEGRINI NORTHSHORE 27

4423 BASKA ALLAN RICH SLOOP

GBR 2566R BELLA GIOIA JOHN & KAREN COLE SWAN 40

SYD 181 BERANI VII DAVID TODNER JARKAN 12.5

371 BERRIMILLA ALEX WHITWORTH BROLGA 33

6767 BIG BLUE BOB & ANN PENTY BENETEAU 38s5

6363 BIG KAHUNA DEAN HARRIGAN BENETEAU 53s5

6461 BLACKADDER STEPHEN THOMAS COOKSON 12

AUS 197 BLACKJACK TERRY WISE PACIFIC SAILING SCHOOL J24

5962 BLACKJACK BRUCE RANKIN SUN ODYSSEY 40

5744 BLACKWATTLE EDWARD NOBBS PETERSON 46

3302 BLIND JUSTICE STEPHEN O’HALLORAN CAVALIER 28

6006 BLUE CHIP KARL STECHMANN PETER MASON SYDNEY 38

6233 BLUE PETER GREG STEWART VERONICA STRACHAN OCEANIS

Y-AUS 42 BONNY J & P WARN INTL YNGLING

1616 BORN FREE WALTER RATHGAB SLOOP

MH 86 BOX OFFICE DAVID LYONS LYONS 25

6640 BREAKFAST RICHARD BRASHER YOUNG 88

BRIGADOON DARYL ISLES HOOD 23

1987 BRIGHT MORNING STAR RANDAL WILSON CRUISER/RACER

4543 BRIGUS TERENCE BURKE PUBLIC PRIVATE S111
PARTNERSHIPS PL

C 1 BRINDABELLA GEORGE SNOW IMS MAXI

111 BRINDABELLA HAMISH LINDSAY ENDEAVOUR  24

3994 BRINDABELLA JANE STRANGER ADVENTURE 7

KA 294 BROLGA MALCOLM & MARK ANDERSON E22

8848 BROOMSTICK MICHAEL CRANITCH RAY WALLACE OPEN 60

BULLANT ROUGE COLIN ALLECK

7441 BUMBLE BEE 5 JOHN DIETER KAHLBETZER SLOOP

Prefix Sail No Vessel Name Owner First Name Owner Last Name Class Type



Annual Report: year end 31 March 2006  CRUISING YACHT CLUB OF AUSTRALIA54

Prefix Sail No Vessel Name Owner First Name Owner Last Name Class Type

CYCA Yacht Register – Continued

8301 CADENZA GUNNAR & ULLI TUISK FARR 50

7379 CADIZ IAN TRELEAVEN BENETEAU OCEANIS473

7777 CALIBRE GEOFF BONUS SYDNEY 38

MH 102 CALLISTA TIM FLAHVIN BENETEAU 47.7

930 CALYPSO TOOTH/GRAHAM/CLARK NORTHSHORE 33

6259 CAMILLA ANGELO SCHEPIS TRADITIONAL 30

Y-AUS 25 CANNY J & P WARN INTL YNGLING

6278 CAPELLA RICHARD HUTCHESON BAVARIA 36

9009 CAPRIA PAUL HYLAND BENETEAU 40.7

13 CAPRICE OF HUON DAVID CHAMPTALOUP CLASSIC

567 CARLA M MARK MICHALEWSKI BENETEAU 47.7

3040 CARNAVAL M TABONE BERNIE VAN T’HOFF SANTANA 30

CARPE DIEM NEVILLE CHRISTIE COTTEE 56

5438 CARTWHEEL RUSSELL DEBNEY CARTER 33

317 CATALINA JOHN McKIM    A.M. CATALINA 34

37008 CATAVENTO PETER BLAIR NS 370

26 CENTREFOLD BRIAN FOLBIGG

5984 CHAMPAGNE ON ICE PHIL & NADA DICKINSON BENETEAU 50

7407 CHANCELLOR EDWARD TOOHER BENETEAU 40.7

CHENONETTA CATHRYN DIXON

611 CHINA BEAR A G CLUBB RH 52

5894 CHINA DOLPHIN STAN MAY CUTTER

8350 C-HORSE JOHN SMITH CAVALIER 350 SL

3797 CHRISTINA III RICHARD CHRISTIAN CAVALIER 28

668 CHUBASCO DAVID COLFELT CLANSMAN

AUS 208 CLANDESTINE SCOTT RYRIE 11 METRE OD

8910 CLUB MARINE ROD SKELLET ANDREW SHORT FARR 40 OD

5845 COCOMO PETER & LAURA TAYLOR SYDNEY 36

3720 COLAC BAY RAYMOND COLLETT ENDURANCE

CONFUSION ROBERT SMITH

CONVICTS REVENGE STEPHEN GIRDIS J24

HKG 56 COOL PHILIPPE ODOUARD FIRST 30

COTE D’AZURE JAMES PEACH BENETEAU

5886 CROSSING BRUCE MARSHALL

8412 CYRENE 3 MIKE SELBY ELENA WISE X412

2455 DANDELION MURRAY OWEN JENNY KINGS CAVALIER 36

5803 DANISCOT EARL ERLING DUFOUR 41 CLASSIC

89 DAYS LIKE THIS ARTHUR PSALTIS/A OTTO/J ROSS BENETEAU  35.1

5485 DEBONAIR ERIC FRANK CAVALIER 350 SL

5664 DELTA WING BILL KOPPE BODEN CRUISER/RACER

678 DESANNA STEPHEN McBURNIE CARTER 33

6660 DEVILS ADVOCATE MARK DONELLY CAVALIER 28

6227 DIANA PHILLIP GROVE HICK 30

8004 DJII BOS GLOBAL MICHAEL TRAVIA BAVARIA 42 CRUISER

KA 5300 DRAKES PRAYER TED CRIMMINGS FARR 43

3433 DREAM TIME PAUL SPIRA HOLLAND 44

7744 EAGLE ROCK ROSS WILSON BENETEAU 47.7

EDWENA EDWARD BYRNE SLOOP

6159 EIDELWEISS NELL PAYNE FOLKBOAT

8105 EIS KAI JACOBSEN NORTHSHORE 38

144 ELECTRA JOHN KEELTY COLE 43

6153 ELECTRA PAUL GILL SYDNEY 41

1061 EPIPHANY NIGEL PRICE CATALINA 320

248 ERICA J LES GOODRIDGE 8 METRE

6059 ESCAPADE RAWDON SIMON BAVARIA

8181 ESPRESSO FORTE LAURENCE FREEDMAN RACER/CRUISER

6037 EUREKA II ROBERT ROBERTSON SYDNEY 60

5868 EVOLUTION RICHARD PERINI FARR 40 OD

4557 EXCESS MICHAEL CHERRY EUREKA 31

6375 EXETER JOHN COLLINGWOOD-SMITH SUN ODYSSEY 43

6210 FABULOUS ACTION PETER BAVIN ADAMS 10

915 FAIR WINDS WILLIAM SMITH KETCH

FARGO CLIVE MAGAWON CLIPPER 361

FARROCIOUS MICHAEL WILLIAMS FARR 1020

338 FAST COMPANY RALPH GUDDERJAHN YOUNG  88



M 66 FELICE DANIEL STORCH FELICE SYNDICATE NORTHSHORE 38

6412 FERGUS RENEE WILLIAMSON-NOBLE X YACHT 42

A 50 FIRETEL BOB LAWLER CARTER 33

FIU IVO ORLIC GRAND SOLEIL 46

B 11 FLICKA GARRY LINACRE HMG 30

4765 FLOATING CHARGE DAVID ANDREWS NORTHSHORE 31

Q 1 FLYING SAUCER MARK & ANNE ANDERSON MOTOR SAILOR

6400 FOLIO ROBYN MORTON HALF TONNER

645 FORTLET JOHN MACONOCHIE KETCH

4400 FOUR SEA SONS HARCOURT GOUGH CUTTER

7277 FRACTIOUS TIM DEVLIN BENETEAU 27.7

6044 FRANCESCA BRENT CARR JEANNEAU

5788 FREE WILLIAM IRELAND BENETEAU 42s7

USA 5341 FREE BIRD PHILIP ASCHE SWAN 44

6347 FREE SPIRIT DAVID MARSHALL CRUISING YACHT

SM 551 FREE SPIRIT MARCO FORSTNER CAVALIER 975

8885 FREE SPIRIT STEPHEN GIRDIS JEANNEAU SUNFAST 52

3195 FRESCA TIM PARKER NORTHSHORE 27

FREYA JOHN SINGER

R 10 FROTH & BUBBLE NATHAN SMITH YOUNG 780

5980 FUTURE SHOCK CRAIG ELLIS ELLIOTT 56

6482 GAIA COLIN O’BRIEN X 482

6351 GAME SET STEPHEN ROACH BAVARIA 38

17 GDAY SPENCER EASTON RHODES 18

6333 GEORGIA EXPRESS IAN GUANARIA MUMM 36

5719 GEORGINA GARY SIMON CUSTOM 30

GET SHORTY

5484 GONDWANA PETER EDWARDS ROBERTSON 950

4330 GRASSHOPPER MARK SALMON NANTUCKET

6343 GREAT XPECTATIONS ROD WILLS X43

6158 GRUMPS RAINER GRIEBEL BAVERIA

3976 GUSTO HUGH DENISON CAVALIER

4173 HALF HOUR PAUL HENDREY HALF TONNER

HAVANA JOHN JAMIESON SLOOP

HAWKEYE LEO GULLEY CUTTER

4208 HEWLETT PACKARD FARR LAP JIM CARPENTER FARR LAP SYNDICATE FARR 37

9797 HIDDEN AGENDA GIBSON GRAHAM SYDNEY38

2125 HOO HA PETER HOWES HALVORSEN 25

1805 HOODOO JAN KENNEDY HOOD

115 HOODWINKED NOEL O’BRIEN HOOD 23

404 HORNBLOWER PETER/ROBIN CAMPBELL /BRADSHAW BONBRIDGE 27

6271 HUBCAP HERMAN HEILIGERS BENETEAU

AUS 1084 HUMPBACK STEPHEN BARLOW ETCHELLS

AUS 6038 ICHI BAN MATT ALLEN FARR 40 OD

8138 ICHI BAN MATT ALLEN SYDNEY 38

IL VENTO GREGORY HAREMZA COMET 44

GER 4014 ILLBRUCK VI STEFAN JACOB IAIN MURRAY V.O 60

6458 ILUKA DANIEL STORCH NEIL FOX NS 369

INFINITY II SABRINA SNOW

5474 INFINITY III MARTIN JAMES FARR 65

7423 INKONKONI ARTHUR LANE OCEANIS 423

6360 INTEGRITY ANDREW STOECKEL FIRST 42s7

3209 INVADER ANTHONY WEBB EASTCOAST

6509 IOLANI PETER WINKLER OCEANIS 361

299 IRREPRESSIBLE JOHN WARNER E22

1390 JABS BRAD STEPHENS CONTESSA 25

AUS 148 JAGGED EDGE LEON RATNER J24

4923 JAPARA PAT GUNNING COLE 30

USA 175 JAWS STAN HALES 11MTR

GBR 4519 JAZZ CHRIS BULL J145

2210 JAZZED UP EDWARD DERMODY BUIZEN 40

6518 JEM JOHN BALDERSTONE SYDNEY 47

5531 JESSIE STEVE HUDSON BROLGA 33

JUICY FRUIT FOLEY GEOFF S 80

AUS 354 JUST A DASH PETER DASH E22
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PH 111 KAIAMI GULAY BILSEL SOUTHERN CROSS

3401 KAIYU OWEN THOMAS LION

2682 KARISMA JOHN MANSON 1TON

6215 KAT IAN AWFORD BENETEAU

2837 KATINKA DES O’CONNELL CURRAWONG

5139 KATINKA PAUL O’CONNELL COLE 35

7878 KAYLE(KAZ) DAVID PESCUD LYONS 54

3689 KINDAMINDI GRAEME FRASER CARTER 33

B 23 KINGURRA PETER JOUBERT BLACK SWAN 43

5417 KIRRALAA VINCENT MUNRO CAVALIER 28

4502 KOBEEF TAKAFAIRE WINKLER PETER COLUMBIA 27

PH 70 KOEL ROBERT RAE

8883 KOKOMO LANG WALKER FARR 40 OD

8383 KRAKATOA DON YOUNG YOUNG SUPER 30

9 KYEEMA DENNIS O’NEILL 9 METRE

4584 LA VELA CHRIS PENTLAND BENETEAU

5407 LADY ANN JOHN & ANN KIRKJIAN JARKAN 38

LADY ELIZABETH RODNEY WILLIAMS OCEANIS 411

131 LAHARA KI & DAVID DOUGLAS

133 LAROOL TJERK DUSSELDORP 30 SQUARE

3782 LARRIKIN JOHN WEILEY NAUT 33

8832 LARRIKIN ROSS GLASSON RICHARD HARPER SYDNEY 32

717 L’ATTITUDE JOHN BARTER DEHLER 41DS

6273 LAZY JACK J A MCINTYRE BAVARIA

3964 LITTLE DARLING WILHELMINA GARDNER NORTHSHORE 27

LITTLE G PATRICK BROUGHTON ETCHELLS

LIVELY ANDREW HAWKINS COMPASS 29

AUS 60000 LOKI STEPHEN AINSWORTH REICHEL PUGH 60

A 156 LOLITA NICHOLAS CASSIM WOODEN SLOOP

3382 LORAY II RAY BROOKS TOP HAT 25 MK III

SYD 1 LORITA MARIA NORMAN RYDGE BENETEAU 47.7

3383 LOTUS ARTHUR EADY LOTUS 10.6

294 LOVE & WAR SIMON KURTS S & S 47

4377 LUNCH ON SUNDAY CHRIS BOWLING CAPE 31

MADEIRA GEOFFREY SMITH SUN ODYSSEY 554DS

5030 MAGIC PUDDING 2ND SLICE JOHN SIMMONDS JEANNEAU 34.2

MAGIQUE CHRIS MCSORLEY BENETEAU 45f5

3687 MAGNETIC NORTH RICHARD HAMMOND CAVALIER

946 MAGNUM ROBERT WILTON BOUNTY 35

AUS 139 MAIS OUI MEGAN THOMAS ANDREW JOHNSON J24

353 MARGARET RINTOUL BRUCE GOULD YAWL

2170 MARGARET RINTOUL II RICHARD PURCELL SLOOP

SYD 5 MARGARET RINTOUL V STAN EDWARDS FRERS  60

780 MARIS IAN KIERNAN TASMAN SEABIRD

4715 MARLOO GEORGE GIRDIS JARKAN 12.5

4099 MARTINET GARY CASSIM BENETEAU FIRST 29

6512 MARTINI DAVID STITZ THOMPSON 870

6397 MATIKA JONATHON GOWLLAND SLOOP

AUS 202 MAVERICK TERRY WISE PACIFIC SAILING SCHOOL J24

1626 MAZURY BRUCE NAIL SWANASON 36

257 MEDINA ERVIN VIDOR BENETEAU 57

1224 MERCEDES IV PETER STRONACH ONE OFF

8679 MERIT DAVID GOTZE VOLVO 60

5757 MERLOT EDWARD TOOHER BENETEAU 33.7

2260 MERRY MAC LESLIE McCLEAN CLANSMAN

2993 MIDNIGHT LACE ANTHONY EGINTON NAUT 33

6515 MISTRAAL ANDREW BULLARD BENETEAU 57

8882 MOONSHADOW V LLOYD BENNETT DUNCANSON O’SHORE

8402 MORE WITCHCRAFT JOHN CAMERON EAGLE 46

2090 MORNA GREG ZYNER CAVALIER 35

6268 MORNING CALM KEN MCKENZIE NORTHSHORE 34

8447 MR BEAKS RIBS DAVID BEAK BENETEAU 44.7

4556 MR BOJANGLES WARREN & WILLIAM GROUNDS NORTHSHORE 38

4960 MRX JON SHORT MILES BASTICK FARR 34 MRX

4748 MULLOKA BRIAN CASEY NORTHSHORE 31
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3341 NADIA TEKI DALTON CONTESSA 25

3111 NAND IV RICHARD CHAPMAN SALAR 40

1949 NANTUCKET LINDSAY BROWN NANTUCKET 31

5482 NAUGHTY CALL GREGG WATSON ROBERTSON 950

6538 NEGOTIATOR PHILIP RICHARDS SUN ODYSSEY

33 NERIDA SIR JAMES HARDY CUTTER

6111 NEVER A DULL MOMENT COLIN WILSON MACKMAN/LYONS

6081 NEXT NEXT SYNDICATE SYDNEY 38

7557 NGAK NGAK ANDREW PRICE BENETEAU 57

AUS 11111 NICORETTE LUDDE INGVALL IRC MAXI

5995 NIPS-N-TUX HOWARD DE TORRES IMX 40

M 5894 NO FIXED ADDRESS PHILLIP KING TRAILER SAILER

3767 NO MERCY MICHAEL McNELLIS 36’ SLOOP

AUS 180 NOKOMIS GEOFF COWEN J24

5857 NORTH STAR PETER THOMAS NORTHSHORE

AUS 368 NORTH SYDNEY STATION ED McCARTHY E22

NORTHERN LADY JOHN & PENNY READ COUGAR CAT

226 NYORA TRACEY/GRAHAM CARPENTER/EVANS SLOOP

2999 OBSESSION PETER MOONEY SYDNEY 38

8008 OCCASIONAL COARSE LANGUAGE WARWICK SHERMAN COOKSON 12

TYC 101 OCEAN FREEWAY CHARLES BOOTH ADAMS

2953 OLYMPUS BRETT HART OLYMPUS SYNDICATE S & S 34

OMAR KHAYYAM RICHARD & RENA PARKER NANTUCKET ISLAND

5673 ON Y VA RAY CRAIGIE ROBERTSON 950

ONE CROWDED HOUR JOHN HARRIS PALM BEACH 36

5530 ONE STEP AHEAD DENNIS MCDONALD FARR 40 OD

328 OPUS III RON FALSON KETCH

2874 OSPREY III JOHN & DIANE LAMB MOTTLE 33

OTELLA VINCENT D’EMILIO 56 SLOOP

544 OUT OF SIGHT MATTHEW WILKINSON MASRM 920

R 38 OUTLAW ALAN QUICK SYDNEY 38

6293 OUTSIDE CHANCE BARRIE ELSBURY SWAN 48

6185 OUTSIDE CHANCE BARRIE ELSBURY BENETEAU 40.7

AUS 202 PACATAC TERRY WISE PACIFIC SAILING SCHOOL J24

97 PACHA JOSE DE LA VEGA CAMPER & NICHOLSON

6108 PANACEA RICK WILCOX BENETEAU 40.7

5438 PANACHE DENNIS KRAWCHUK LAVRANOS 36

AUS 8001 PANTHER STEPHEN O’ROURKE FARR 40 OD

PANTOMIME MICHAEL KELLY MOODY 35

5447 PAPILLON JOHN ROTH SUNSET 750

3788 PATRICIA J PATRICIA COX NORTHSHORE 27

329 PEGASUS WILLIAM STREETON ENDEAVOUR 32

5164 PENDRAGON ANDREW COCHRANE STEWART 34

2557 PHILLIPS FOOTE WITCHDOCTOR RUM CONSORTIUM DAVIDSON

M 669 PHOEBE CELESTE HARRY HOUSE ROZINANTE

6407 PICARON WILLIAM HALL STEWART

5926 PINOT EDWARD TOOHER MOTTLE 33

PINTA BRYAN DIGGES BENETEAU

5251 PIPEDREAM MARK McELLIGOTT DEHLER TOP 34

533 PIPPIN D & A TAYLOR FARR 37

7623 PLABA IV BRUNO GAMBACORTI 1/2 TON

5269 PLUS 16 SALVATORE RIDOLFO FARR 11.6

US 20 PLYM NEVILLE CRIGHTON

6344 POPPY MICHAEL & VIRGINIA PHILLIPS GIB SEA

3678 PRELUDE CYRIL LATIMER TOP HAT MKIII

AUS 3 PREMIER CHALLENGE LISA ALLEN VOLVO 70

8924 PRETTY FLY II COLIN & GLADYS WOODS BENETEAU 47.7

7447 PRIME TIME DAVID MASON BENETEAU 44.7

4582 PRIVATEER BILL MIROW BENETEAU

120 PROSPECTOR GREG JOHNSTON CUTTER

3288 QUAMBI JUSTIN PELLY CAVALIER 28

AUS 893 QUEEN ANNES REVENGE MICHAEL BELLINGHAM ETCHELLS

609 QUETZAL BRIAN CLAYTON NANTUCKET 31

6444 QUICKIE STUART MUIRHEAD SYDNEY 32

1272 RABELAIS PHILLIP MILLS COLUMBIA 33

CYCA Yacht Register – Continued
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2532 RACY LADY ANDREW LUKAS S 80

AUS 70 RAGAMUFFIN SYD FISCHER FARR 50

4684 RAINBOW JOHN ROBERTS NORTHSHORE 38

AUS 1191 RANGOON TIGER CHRIS GRUBB ETCHELLS

6332 RAZORS EDGE RAY STONE SYDNEY 32

4337 RELISH IV BILL BAILEY ELAN 43

E 16 ROB ROY MICHAEL YORK ETCHELLS

2552 ROONIE BRADSHAW KELLETT VICTORIA COWDERY TASAR

3999 RUMBLE FISH JOHN BROWN IOR FARR 40

RUSH CUTTER NICHOLAS RYAN

5077 RUSHCUTTER DON TELFORD FARR 40 OD

3303 RUTHSTAR PETER HILL BENETEAU 40.7

6186 S.Y LA TORTUGITA BRIAN JAMES FARR 9.2

6206 SABBATICAL JEFFREY BURGESS CAVALIER 32

KA 71 SACRE BLEU BEN WELSH SOLING

800 SAGA GARY APPLEBY NANTUCKET 33

8575 SAGACIOUS II LANCE WILLIAMS NANTUCKET 43

4643 SAHARA JOHN BOX NORTHSHORE 27

KA 113 SAILPAC TERRY WISE PACIFIC SAILING SCHOOL J24

190 SALACIA II ARTHUR BYRNE MH SLOOP

5826 SALT SHAKER PETER FRANKI SYDNEY 36

SALTY LADY ANDREW MORSE CAVALIER 37

2114 SAMIEL ALAN STANTON SLOOP

SANA DAVID MATHLIN ONE OFF

1770 SARABANDE BASIL DIETHELM SWAN 44

2449 SASS D A REID QTR TON

SAVANNAH GIRL CHARLES BATES SWAN 46

5879 SEA-CHANGE MICHAEL BELAKHOV SYDNEY 36

KA 42 SECOND WIND MARK HOLLINGSWORTH PETER MACDONALD CONVERTED ETCHELLS

2560 SECRETS IAN BRADDOCK COMPASS

8844 SERIOUSLY TEN JOHN/ERIC/SHAUN WOODRUFF/ROBINSON/JAMES VOLVO 60

9412 SEXTANT DENIS DOYLE LYNNE SMITH X412

M 307 SHADOWFAX COLIN FRANKLIN CATAMARAN

4924 SHE PETER RODGERS CRUISING

9477 SHERE KHAN RICHARD WYATT BENETEAU

6226 SHIRALEE ROBERT & SUE SEGAERT BENETEAU OCEANIS 473

209 SHONA BILL FERRIS JOSEPH SKRZYNSKI SLOOP

SHOPKEEPER GARRIE TOLIS

8081 SHORT CIRCUIT GUY STENING JS 8000

AUS 325 SILKY ANTHONY HIRST E22

4409 SILVER SPRAY II P CASEY NORTHSHORE

5436 SINE WAVE GREGORY MASON DAVIDSON CUSTOM 37

9990 SINTARA GORDON ANDERSON BENETEAU 42s7

SIROCCO LEE BOUERI OCEANIS 35

208 SKEAN DHU E D (TED) ROBERTS CLANSMAN

AUS 124 SLACK ALICE KEITH SHEPPARD J24

5892 SOBRAON ROBIN & KAY HYETT BENETEAU

5244 SOLUS BERNARD ALLECK STELLA

700 SOMMERBREEZE HANS SOMMER CAVALIER 350SL

38 SOUTHERLY DON MICKLEBOROUGH SLOOP

1770 SOUTHERN STAR JOHN ANTHONY CALVERT-JONES FARR 40 OD

2020 SPEARHEAD TRIBAL SYNDICATE ADAMS 1050

4113 SPEEDWELL COLIN GEEVES YOUNG 88

2470 SPIDER MIKE AUSTIN UFO34

SPINDRIFT PETER LYNCH

AUS 21 SPIRIT IAIN MURRAY STEFFAN JACOB IACC

4869 SPIRIT OF DEFIANCE JENS RASMUSSEN DEFIANCE 30

1152 SPLAY JOHN CHRISTIE THUNDERBIRD

AUS 154 STAMPED URGENT R & E ROSS J24

6068 STAR DEAN WILCOCKS MARC & LOUIS RYCKMANS SYDNEY 38

6504 STAR OF ANTLA SID FRENCH HUNTER 340

760 STARBUCK MAX DOWLING

AUS 203 STARPAC TERRY WISE PACIFIC SAILING SCHOOL

5132 STARSTRUCK DAVEAU KEN DAVIS JEANNEAU ONE DESIGN

5588 STICKYBEAK ROBERT SHELDON FARR 40 OD
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508 STORMY PETREL KEVIN O’SHEA S & S 37

6188 STREWTH GEOFFREY HILL MKL 49

8585 SUMMERCLOUD II RICHARD MOORE MOTTLE

6279 SUMMERSALT RICHARD LAVERS SUPER 30

L 55 SUNDOWNER WILLIAM WEBB

6326 SUNSHINE JOHN KIRBY SUN ODYSSEY 45.2

SUNSHINE MCKENZIE OLIVER KETCH

9900 SUPERFINE GEORGE WALDTHAUSEN CAVALIER 350 SL

1295 SURAYA CARL SRIBER S & S

608 SWEET CHARIOT IV DAVID HENRY BUIZEN 48

6073 SWISH STEVEN PROUD WILL HUTCHINSON SYDNEY 38

6070 SYDNEY CHARLES CURRAN SYDNEY 60

193 SYONARA GREG MAUGHAN SWANSON

114 TAKE TIME GRAHAM H SMITH BROLGA

6999 TALON ALAN KENDALL BENETEAU 42.7

A 64 TAMARIS DR B SPROULE CLASSIC

626 TANAMI 626 MARKETING COLE 40

3569 TANGLEFOOT ROSS MARR

1247 TASHTEGO PATRICIA MINTER HALVERSON 41

638 TAWARRI II CHRIS IACONO CARBINEER

TENACIOUS R G MCKENDRICK

3838 TEQUILA SUNRISE JOHN BROOKS NORTHSHORE 38

4100 TERRA FIRMA NICHOLAS BARTELS MARTIN VAUGHAN MURRAY 41

29 THE RED HAND GRAHAM O’NEILL

3790 TICKALARA DAVID LIVERMORE PHANTOM 32

4045 TIME OUT PETER BLAIR ROSS GARDYNE NORTHSHORE 38

2720 TIM-NICK LESLIE COSGROVE TOP HAT

AUS 11111 TOKOLOSH LUDDE INGVALL IRC SUPER MAXI

5103 TONIC ALAN GREEN OLSEN 40

777 TOTAL ECLIPSE DAVID GOUGH BUIZEN 48

MH 109 TOUCH OF GOLD K J (ACE) MOWTELL SLOOP

TRADITION PETER BUSH HANS CHRISTIAN 41

AUS 28 TRAFFIC JAM DONALD MAXWELL J24

7477 TRIESTE PETER VERSI BENETEAU FIRST 47.7

6223 TRIM RICHARD JOHN SMIDLIN NORTHSHORE 369

191 TRINITY ROSS ADAMS J24

6387 TRU BLU CHARLES GRACE IOR HALF TON

1014 UBS WILD THING GEOFF LAVIS INGLIS/MURRAY 50

10043 UCANTTAKEITWITHYOU JOHN STUCKEY SUNFAST 43

6095 UPLIFT DARRYL HODGKINSON SYDNEY 38

7600 UTOPIA JOHN MESSENGER SYDNEY 38

1510 VANESSA III KIM JAGGAR

6377 VANGUARD CAWSE DICK LYONS / CAWSE 60

61 VARUNA DR JOHN MUSGROVE RANGER

4688 VASCO DE GRANGA MICHAEL GRANGER YOUNG 88

KA 37 VICTORY BAR BRUCE ROWLEY SOLING

4650 VIRTIQUE SCOT LAWSON CAV 28

4600 VIVACITE JOHN WALTON BENETEAU 44.7

5900 WAHOO BRIAN EMERSON FRERS 40

YC 222 WAR GAMES DAVID C URRY FARR 40 OD

5725 WATERSHED DAVID EASTWOOD CHRIS DUVALL ENDEAVOUR  26

WAYFARER PETER LUKE OFFSHORE

6024 WEAPON ROBERT SKINNER FARR 40 OD

AUS 196 WETTY GRIPPER STUART/ADAM/FRANK MUIRHEAD/FRANCIS/VOLCKMAR J24

DAUS 198 WHIM GORDON W INGATE DRAGON

4367 WHIMBREL PHILLIP MADDEN CAVALIER 28

AUS 170 WHISPER ANDREW MCCRORY J24

6469 WHITE HOT WARREN COTTIS F36 RAZER

6543 WHITE SATIN BILL NEILL X43

AUS 100 WHO KNOWS F D FOSTER J24

5494 WILD EAGLE PAUL MULHERIN ADAMS 40

4343 WILD OATS ROGER HICKMAN IMS/IRC RACER

7001 WILD OATS X ROBERT OATLEY REICHEL PUGH 66

AUS 10001 WILD OATS XI ROBERT OATLEY 30M MAXI

M 10 WILD THING GRANT WHARINGTON SUPER MAXI
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8484 WINDFLYT DOUG STURROCK TOWNSON 36

4895 WINDISFREE GARY BALLANTYNE PHASE 4

3938 WINGS THREE PAUL BILLINGHAM NORTHSHORE 38

6607 WIRRAJURND PETER WHITFORD SYDNEY 32

263 WISTARIE BILL & LEONIE RATCLIFF MOODY 338

WITCHDOCTOR JOHN DODD

WOOLLOOMOOLOO LOUISA GEDDES E22

5805 XANTHIPPE BERNARD O’SULLIVAN ADAMS 48

XANTIPPE CASSANDRA & NIGEL LAKE BAVARIA 44

5844 X-RATED KEVIN PUDNEY X YACHT

6155 YANDOO JOHN WINNING SYDNEY 38

AUS 868 YANDOO XX NEVILLE WITTEY ETCHELLS

789 YARRAWIN PAUL RAMSEY CLASSIC 60

1836 YENDYS GEOFFREY ROSS IMS RACER

3000 YES GARY McLEOD SLOOP

840 YOUNGSTAR GARRY CORSTORPHAN YOUNG 840

6001 YOU’RE HIRED ANDREA BANKS ROS MORGAN BENETEAU 47.7

1097 YUM SING PAUL HUNTER PRINCE

HKG 1943 ZEPHYR JEREMY MEAD FARR 41 MX

43 ZEPHYROS GABE KEMENY

M 31 ZEPHYRUS ROBERT HAMPSHIRE 30SQ M

AUS 7077 ZERO GRAVITY TOM PIOTROWSKI CATAMARAN

5531 ZIG ZAG II GRAHAM THOMPSON J 35

ZINGARA II DOUGLAS HART HANS CHRISTIAN 38

5001 ZULU GRAEME CLARK S 80

1 MUSTO YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0

2 TOLL YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0

3 BAVARIA YACHTS YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0

4 CLUB MARINE YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0

5 TALENT 2 YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0

6 TRIPLE M YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0

7 SANDY BAY SURF CO YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0

8 CAMP EDEN/CHRISTIE CORP YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0

9 SAILORS WITH DISABILITIES YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0

10 ROSE BAY MARINA YOUTH SAILING ACADEMY ELLIOTT 6.0

CRU AUDREY J STUART PURVES TRAWLER

CRU 9002 CHARON JOSEPH ABRAHAM MOTOR CRUISER

CRU 9023 EOS J & L MEYER MOTOR CRUISER

CRU ESSEX MICHAEL CALDWELL CRESTA SEDAN CRUISER

CRU FORESIGHT MICHAEL SPIES RUNABOUT

CRU GALVESTON DAVID HEALY CARIBBEAN 35

CRU GORDON MARSHALL CYCA STEBER 36

CRU HASTA LA VISTA MICHAEL SANCHEZ RIVIERA

CRU JOLLY ROGER MATTHEW DE TORRES VIKING 30

CRU 18 KAI LAG MAURICE DRENT LUGGER

CRU KATRIARNA II STAN RODGERS TSMV

CRU KODAK ACE K J (ACE) MOWTELL RUNABOUT

CRU LADY JOY JAMES & JOY MCLAREN MOTOR CRUISER

CRU M V LIBERTY ROBERT J STEWART MOTOR VESSEL

CRU MARCUS B KAY COTTEE RIVER BOAT

CRU NI BAN MATT ALLEN SEARAY 525

CRU OFFSHORE CYCA STEBER 36

CRU OLLIE NICK KINGSMILL MOTOR LAUNCH

CRU QE3 MR K J STEVENS MOTOR CRUISER

CRU ROBUSTUM BART RYAN MOTOR VESSEL

CRU ROMANTY SIR WILLIAM TYREE MOTOR CRUISER

CRU ROULETTE CHRISTIAN AINSWORTH PROFIL MARINE 50

CRU SILVER DAWN DAVID SHMITH MOTOR CRUISER

CRU STREETER STEPHEN SMART PEARL LUGGER

CRU TANTIVY GRAHAM SWAN MOTOR CRUISER

CRU “THE “”A”” TRAIN” ROSS MACDONALD MOTOR LAUNCH

CRU TICKETY-TOO DEREK KING RIVIERA 32

CRU TINKA GEOFF LEE MOTOR CRUISER

CRU TSMV SWORDFISH ARTHUR GROGAN

CRU WYN-MAREE MAX YAFFA
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The Cruising Yacht Club of Australia would like to thank 

the following sponsors for coming on board 

for the 2005-2006 race series.

Cruising Yacht Club of Australia’s Principal Sponsor

Cruising Yacht Club of Australia’s Official Sponsors

Youth Sailing Academy Sponsors

New Beach Road, Darling Point, NSW 2027
ACN 000 116 423 (A company limited by guarantee) ABN 28 000 116 423

www.cyca.com.au

We ask CYCA members to support these organisations where possible

ROSE  BAY  MARINA Noakes
Boat &Shipyards


